UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period endddne 30, 2015

Commission file numbed01-33013

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cagrt

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation organization)

11-3209278
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

220 RXR Plaza, Uniondale, New York 11556
(Address of principal executive offices)

(718) 9615400

(Registrant's telephone number, including area gode

1979 Marcus Avenue, Suite E140, Lake Success, Newrk’'11042
(Former address of Principal executive offices)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sewcti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Ac
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for suabrteh period that the registrant was required ® duch reports), and (2) has been subject to
filing requirements for the past 90 daysY¥s No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdmrstted electronically and posted on its corpoiéteb site, if any, every Interactive Data |
required to be submitted and posted pursuant t@ ROb of Regulation $-(8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@gnionths (or for suc
shorter period that the registrant was requiresbtamit and post such files). Xes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlsrge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp
See definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “atarated filer” and “smaller reporting company” iulg 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer __ Accelerated filer X
Non-accelerated file__ Smaller reporting company _

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act) Yes XNo

The number of shares of the registrant’'s CommogkStoitstanding as of July 31, 2015 was 28,924,818.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Financial Statements- (Unaudited)
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol@&eysity
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ITEM 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

PART Il — OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities ath Use of Proceed
ITEM 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

ITEM 5. Other Information

ITEM 6. Exhibits

SIGNATURES

PAGE

S 01~ W N P

49

67
67

68
68
68
68
68
68
69
70



PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

(Unaudited)
Item 1. Financial Statements
June 30, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d¢ 2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 36,59¢ $ 34,26¢
Securities hel-to-maturity:
Other securities (none pledged) (fair value of $@,at June 30, 201! 7,22( -
Securities available for sal
Mortgage-backed securities (including assets plead&438,646 and $464,626 at June 30, 2015 andrbleer 31,
2014, respectively; $4,037 and $4,678 at fair valuesuant to the fair value option at June 30, 281 Decemb
31, 2014, respectively 729,67 704,93!
Other securities (including assets pledged of $8Bdnd $57,562 at June 30, 2015 and December 24, 20

respectively; $28,122 and $27,915 at fair valuespant to the fair value option at June 30, 2015Reckmber 3:

2014, respectively 307,82 268,37"
Loans held for sal 30C -
Loans:

Multi-family residentia 2,017,89: 1,923,46!
Commercial real esta 726,13¢ 621,56¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 567,06( 573,77¢
One-to-four family — residentia 189,57: 187,57
Co-operative apartmen 7,681 9,83t
Constructior 3,677 5,28¢
Small Business Administratic 12,18: 7,13¢
Taxi medallion 21,21: 22,51¢
Commercial business and ott 472,48! 447 ,50(
Net unamortized premiums and unearned loan 13,25: 11,71¢
Allowance for loan losses (23,089 (25,096
Net loans 4,008,05! 3,785,27
Interest and dividends receival 17,98( 17,25:
Bank premises and equipment, 24,41¢ 21,86¢
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc 49,92¢ 46,92
Bank owned life insuranc 114,08¢ 112,65¢
Goodwill 16,127 16,127
Other assets 47,75 69,33¢
Total assets $ 5,359,96. $ 5,077,0L
LIABILITIES
Due to depositors
Non-interest bearini $ 25757 $ 255,83
Interes-bearing:

Certificate of deposit accour 1,375,501 1,305,82:

Savings accouni 264,71¢ 261,94

Money market accoun 399,19: 290,26

NOW accounts 1,357,41. 1,359,05

Total interes-bearing deposit 3,396,82 3,217,08!
Mortgagors' escrow depos 43,93( 35,67¢
Borrowed funds ($ 29,476 and $28,771 at fair v@luesuant to the fair value option at June 30, 28i&% December

31, 2014, respectivel 999,43! 940,49:
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 116,00( 116,00(
Other liabilities 84,06 55,67¢

Total liabilities 4,897,82! 4,620,76!
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4 ¢
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value; 5,000,000 shauwt®orized; None issue - -
Common stock ($0.01 par value; 100,000,000 sharémezed; 31,530,595 shares issued at June 36, 20d

December 31, 2014; 28,923,000 shares and 29,408/828s outstanding at June 30, 2015 and Decerthp2034,

respectively’ 31t 31t
Additional paic-in capital 209,25° 206,43°
Treasury stock, at average cost (2,607,595 shark8,426,772 shares at June 30, 2015 and Decerhp20B4,

respectively’ (46,98() (37,22))
Retained earning 303,30( 289,62



Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes (3,756 (2,907)
Total stockholders' equity 462,13t 456,24°

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 5,359,960 $ 5,077,01

The accompanying notes are an integral part obthessolidated financial statements
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited)
For the three months For the six months
ended June 3( ended June 3(
2015 2014 2015 2014
Interest and dividend income
Interest and fees on loa $ 4408: $ 42.48¢ $ 87,61¢ $ 84,60¢
Interest and dividends on securiti
Interest 5,98¢ 6,861 11,85¢ 13,74
Dividends 11¢€ 19t 23€ 384

Other interest income 32 18 53 45

Total interest and dividend income 50,22 49,56¢ 99,76¢ 98,78(
Interest expense
Deposits 7,437 7,67( 14,89¢ 15,38¢
Other interest expense 4,64¢ 5,07(C 9,17¢ 10,07¢

Total interest expense 12,08: 12,74( 24,07: 25,46«
Net interest income 38,14( 36,82¢ 75,69 73,31¢
Benefit for loan losses (51€) (1,099 (1,250 (2,21))
Net interest income after benefit for loan losse 38,65¢ 37,92 76,94¢ 75,527
Non-interest income
Banking services fee incon 89¢ 867 1,782 1,57¢
Net gain on sale of securiti 64 - 64 -
Net gain on sale of loar 47 - 49 -
Net gain on sale of building 6,537 - 6,537 -
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustme 76¢ (402) 173 (1,04¢)
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock divide 457 43C 97t 981
Bank owned life insuranc 71t 75E 1,432 1,531
Other income 461 33€ 86& 654

Total non-interest income 9,947 1,98¢ 11,87 3,69¢
Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee bene 13,157 11,94« 27,82 24,52
Occupancy and equipme 2,63 1,91¢ 5,34¢ 3,95¢
Professional service 1,35(C 1,527 3,12¢ 2,737
FDIC deposit insuranc 811 673 1,56( 1,37(C
Data processin 1,17z 1,04z 2,247 2,11C
Depreciation and amortizatic 867 717 1,53¢ 1,432
Other real estate owned/foreclosure expe 87 27¢ 607 53E
Other operating expenses 4,16¢ 2,52° 7,93¢ 6,057

Total non-interest expense 24,24¢ 20,62¢ 50,18 42,715
Income before income taxe 24,35 19,28: 38,63¢ 36,50¢
Provision for income taxes
Federal 7,15k 5,51z 11,407 10,27:
State and local 2,36¢ 2,08t 3,66( 4,254

Total taxes 9,521 7,59¢ 15,06 14,52¢
Net income $ 14,83 $ 11,68 $ 23567 $ 21,98
Basic earnings per common sh $ 051 $ 03¢ $ 0.8C $ 0.7:
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 051 $ 03¢ $ 0.8C $ 0.7z
Dividends per common sha $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1t % 03z % 0.3C

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended  For the six months ended
June 30 June 30
(Dollars in thousands 2015 2014 2015 2014
Net income $ 14,83 $ 11,68t $ 23,567 $ 21,98:
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Amortization of actuarial losse 171 98 34t 161
Amortization of prior service credi (7) (7) (13 (20
Reclassificaton adjustment for net gains incluageithcome (36) - (36) -
Net unrealized (losses) gains on secur (5,477) 6,51: (1,14%) 11,87:
Total other comprehensive income, net of ta $ (5,349 $ 6,60¢ $ (849) $ 12,024

*»

Comprehensive income 9,48t $ 18,28¢ $ 22,718 $ 34,00t

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements .



PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
For the six months ended
June 30
(Dollars in thousands 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 23,567 $ 21,98:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activitie:
Benefit for loan losse (1,250 (2,217
Depreciation and amortization of bank premisesemqmdpmen: 1,53t 1,432
Amortization of premium, net of accretion of disod 4,447 3,58¢
Net (gain) loss from fair value adjustme (179 1,04¢
Net gain from sale of loar (49 -
Net gain from sale of securiti (69 -
Net gain from sale of building (6,537%) -
Income from bank owned life insuran (1,439 (1,53))
Stoclk-based compensation expel 3,64: 3,13¢
Deferred compensatic (2,009 (1,48¢)
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme (380) (74¥)
Deferred income tax (benefit) provisi (3,85%) 2,74t
Increase in other liabilitie 70€ 1,94¢
Decrease in other assets 5,37¢ 1,48¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 23,52¢ 31,38
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of bank premises and equipr (7,84)) (85%)
Net purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank of New ‘$bdees (3,009 (5,389
Purchases of securities h-to-maturity (3,100 -
Proceeds from maturities of securities -to-maturity 39C -
Purchases of securities available for ¢ (138,09) (70,87))
Proceeds from sales and calls of securities avaifab sale 25,03¢ 1,871
Proceeds from maturities and prepayments of sézsiavailable for sal 61,86¢ 47,53¢
Proceeds from sale of buildin 20,20¢ -
Net originations of loan (82,54 (90,94¢)
Purchases of loar (126,07() (12,889
Proceeds from sale of real estate ow 2,07( 2,034
Proceeds from sale of delinquent loans 5,02¢ 7,332
Net cash used in investing activities (246,049 (122,166
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in ncinterest bearing depos 1,741 15,92(
Net increase (decrease) in inte-bearing deposit 179,21: (18,409
Net increase in mortgagors' escrow depc 8,251 8,18¢
Net proceeds from sh-term borrowed fund 35,00( 109,00(
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 72,99¢ -
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (50,000 (9,300
Purchases of treasury stc (13,490 (3,285)
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme 38C 74¢
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeofistock option 142 42¢
Cash dividends paid (9,379 (9,015
Net cash provided by financing activities 224,85¢ 94,28
Net increase in cash and cash equival 2,33¢ 3,491
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 34,26t 33,48¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 36,59¢ $ 36,98:
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURE
Interest paic $ 23,58 $ 25,17:
Income taxes pai 16,22: 12,23¢
Taxes paid if excess tax benefits were not tax ciénle 16,60! 12,98«
Non-cash activities
Securities purchased not yet seti 22,03’ -
Securities transferred from available for saledtw-to-maturity 4,51(C -
Loans transferred to Other Real Estate Ow 772 65E

Loans provided for the sale of Other Real Estate€ll 17¢ 30¢
Loans held for investment transferred to loans faldale 30C -



The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholder&quity

(Unaudited)
For the six months ended
June 30
(Dollars in thousands, except per share d: 2015 2014
Common Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ 31t $ 31t
No activity - -
Balance, end of period $ 31 $ 31t
Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance, beginning of peric $ 206,437 $ 201,90:
Award of common shares released from Employee Behefst (136,114 and 129,694 common shares fosithe
months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respect 1,96¢ 1,97t
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawtrds (59,532 and 2,500 common shares for themasikhs ended
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectiv 16C 9
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (6,025180¢625 common shares for the six months ended 32015 ant
2014, respectively 8 29¢€
Stocl-based compensation activity, 1 303 392
Stock-based income tax benefit 38C 74€
Balance, end of period $ 209,25 $ 205,32
Treasury Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ (37,22) $ (22,05
Purchases of outstanding shares (635,199 and 1M8dt@mon shares for the six months ended June03d®, &nd
2014, respectively (22,380 (2,149
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawstrds (204,110 and 188,480 common shares faittraonths
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respecti 3,571 2,972
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (9,725180¢625 common shares for the six months ended 32015 ant
2014, respectively 174 1,60¢
Purchases of shares to fund options exercisedg@8%3,732 common shares for the six months endss 30, 2015
and 2014, respectivel (20 (1,290
Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax obligationgi@8and 55,465 common shares for the six monttiecedune 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively) (1,110 (1,147
Balance, end of period $ (46,980 $ (22,049
Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of peric $ 289,62 $ 263,74
Net income 23,567 21,98:
Cash dividends declared and paid on common sh&0e32and $0.30 per common share for the six maeied Jun
30, 2015 and 2014, respective (9,379 (9,01%)
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (3,700 comshares and 7,200 common shares for the six memnited Jun
30, 2015 and 2014, respective (8) (45)
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawvdtrds (144,578 and 185,980 common shares faittraonths
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively) (509 (399
Balance, end of period $ 303,30 $ 276,26¢
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (loss
Balance, beginning of peric $ (2,909 $ (11,379
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on sessidirailable for sale, net of taxes of approxiny$833 and ($9,141
for the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 20%gentively (1,14%) 11,87:
Reclassification adjustment for loss included ihineome, net of taxes of approximately $28 for shemonths endec
June 30, 201 (36) -
Amortization of actuarial losses, net of taxesmr@ximately ($268) and ($189) for the six monthded June 30,
2015 and 2014, respective 34t 161
Amortization of prior service credits, net of taxefsapproximately $10 and $13 for the six monthdezhJune 30, 201
and 2014, respectively) (13 (10
Balance, end of period $ (3,750 $ 64¢
Total Stockholders' Equity $ 462,13t $ 460,50

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements .
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentatior

The primary business of Flushing Financial Corgorat(the “Holding Company”), a Delaware corporatidsa the operation of its whollgwnec
subsidiary, Flushing Bank (the “Bank”).

The unaudited consolidated financial statementsemted in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (“Qerdy Report”)include the collective results of 1
Holding Company and its direct and indirect whadlyned subsidiaries, including the Bank, Flushingf@red Funding Corporation, Flushing Ser
Corporation, and FSB Properties Inc., which aréectively herein referred to as “we,” “us,” “ourhd the “Company.”

The Holding Company also owns Flushing Financigbi@a Trust 1, Flushing Financial Capital Trust,land Flushing Financial Capital Trust IV (
“Trusts”), which are special purpose business stuShe Trusts are not included in the Compargonsolidated financial statements as the Con
would not absorb the losses of the Trusts if asgds were to occur.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finan¢sements are prepared in accordance with accauptinciples generally accepted in the Un
States of America (“GAAP"and general practices within the banking indusirige information furnished in these interim statetsereflects a
adjustments which are, in the opinion of managemeatessary for a fair statement of the resultsstah presented periods of the Company.
adjustments are of a normal recurring nature, sngiserwise disclosed in this Quarterly Report.iAlercompany balances and transactions have
eliminated in consolidation. The results of openasi in the interim statements are not necessandlicative of the results that may be expectedHe
full year.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finan¢&#éments have been prepared in conformity withirteguctions to Quarterly Report on Form QO-
and Article 10, Rule 10-01 of RegulationXSfor interim financial statements. Accordingly,r@@n information and footnote disclosures normr
included in financial statements prepared in acaoce with GAAP have been condensed or omitted patdo the rules and regulations of the Secu
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The unaudited aligdeted interim financial information should beadein conjunction with the ComparsyAnnua
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembepG14.

2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymvith GAAP requires management to make estimatad assumptions that affect the repc
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclos@imotingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements, and reported amounts\afu
and expenses during the reporting period. Estimtias are particularly susceptible to change in iear term are used in connection with
determination of the allowance for loan losses (LAL), the evaluation of goodwill for impairment, the avation of the need for a valuation allowa
of the Company’s deferred tax assets, the evalatfoother-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI6n securities and the valuation of certain finak
instruments. The current economic environment hareased the degree of uncertainty inherent inethegterial estimates. Actual results could d
from these estimates.

3. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed bylidiyinet income available to common shareholdershiytotal weighted average numbe
common shares outstanding, which includes unvesetitipating securities. Unvested shaesed payment awards that contain nonforfeitaglesitc
dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paidiopaid) are participating securities and as suehirarluded in the calculation of earnings per sl
The Companys unvested restricted stock and restricted stodkawerds are considered participating securifléserefore, weighted average comr
shares outstanding used for computing basic essmirgcommon share includes common shares outstppllis unvested restricted stock and restr
stock unit awards. The computation of diluted eagriper share includes the additional dilutive affef stock options outstanding and other com
stock equivalents during the period. Common stapkivalents that are andifutive are not included in the computation ofutéld earnings per comm
share. The numerator for calculating basic andetilearnings per common share is net income al@italcommon shareholders. The shares held
Company’s Employee Benefit Trust are not includedhares outstanding for purposes of calculatimgiegs per common share.

-6-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
Earnings per common share have been computed baged following:

For the three months ended For the six months ended

June 30 June 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In thousands, except per share de

Net income, as reporte $ 1483: $ 11,68 $ 23567 $ 21,98
Divided by:

Weighted average common shares outstan 29,24¢ 30,05¢ 29,32: 30,02:

Weighted average common stock equivalents 22 31 22 34

Total weighted average common shares outstandidg@mmon stock equivaler 29,26¢ 30,09( 29,34 30,05¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 051 % 03¢ $ 0.8C $ 0.7t
Diluted earnings per common shi® $ 051 $ 03¢ $ 08¢ $ 0.7¢
Dividend payout ratic 31.2% 38.5% 40.(% 41.1%

(1) For the three and six months ended June 30, 201 2@, there were no stock options that were-dilutive.
4.  Debt and Equity Securities

The Companys investments in equity securities that have rgatiterminable fair values and all investmentsdhtdsecurities are classified in one of
following three categories and accounted for adogiy: (1) trading securities, (2) securities agblke for sale and (3) securities held-to-maturity.

The Company did not hold any trading securitieduate 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014. The Companyadihold any securities held-toaturity a
December 31, 2014. Securities available for saeecorded at fair value.

The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities held-to-maturity at June 30, 2015

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands
Securites hel-to-maturity:
Municipals $ 722 $ 722 $ - $ -

Total $ 7220 $ 7220 $ - 9 -

During the three months ended June 30, 2015, thmp@oy transferred municipal bonds with an amortizest and fair value of $4.5 million frc
available for sale to held-tmaturity. The transferred securities had a weiglaeerage term to maturity of approximately sevemtin® at the time «
transfer.




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at June 3@20

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands
Securites available for sale

Corporate $ 105,85. $ 104,64t $ 521  $ 1,72¢
Municipals 136,92 139,91: 3,11« 13C
Mutual funds 21,19: 21,19: - -
Other 42,00¢ 42,07 69 2

Total other securities 305,97¢ 307,82: 3,704 1,857
REMIC and CMC 530,68 532,66: 6,16¢ 4,187
GNMA 12,80: 13,08( 401 125
FNMA 170,83¢ 170,53« 1,63¢ 1,93¢
FHLMC 13,25¢ 13,39¢ 13¢ -

Total mortgage-backed securities 727,58: 729,67 8,34( 6,24¢

Total securities available for sale $ 1,03355 $ 1,037,49 $ 12,04 $ 8,10¢

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table alislede two private issue collateralized mortgatpigations (“CMOs”)that are collateralized
commercial real estate mortgages with amortizetlaod fair value of $9.1 million at June 30, 2015.

The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at DecemberZil4:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses

(In thousands
Securites available for sale

Corporate $ 90,71¢ $ 91,27: $ 1,26¢ $ 714
Municipals 145,86+ 148,89¢ 3,09z 61
Mutual funds 21,11¢ 21,11¢ - -
Other 7,09¢ 7,09( - 8

Total other securities 264,79¢ 268,37 4,361 78¢
REMIC and CMC 504,20’ 505, 76¢ 6,18¢ 4,627
GNMA 13,86: 14,15¢ 421 124
FNMA 169,95¢ 170,36° 2,12¢ 1,717
FHLMC 14,50¢ 14,63¢ 142 8

Total mortgage-backed securities 702,53( 704,93! 8,87¢ 6,47¢

Total securities available for sale $ 967,32¢ $ 97331( $ 13,24C $ 7,25¢

Mortgagebacked securities shown in the table above inclodee private issue CMOs that are collateralizeddoiymercial real estate mortgages wit
amortized cost and fair value of $12.4 million a&d@mber 31, 2014.




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table represents the activity relatedhe credit loss component recognized in eamorgdebt securities held by the Company for wh
portion of OTTI was recognized in AOCI for the pt$ indicated:

For the three months ended For the six months ended

June 30 June 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In thousands
Beginning balanc $ - % 3,73¢  $ - % 3,73¢
Recognition of actual loss: = = - -
OTTI charges due to credit loss recorded in eas - - - -
Securities sold during the peri - - - -
Securities where there is an intent to sell or ireguent to sell - - - -
Ending balance $ - $ 3,73¢  $ - $ 3,73¢

The following table represents the gross gainsgands losses realized from the sale of securitiagadble for sale for the periods indicated:

For the three months ended For the six months ended

June 30 June 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In thousands
Gross gains from the sale of securi $ 233 % - $ 23z 3 =
Gross losses from the sale of securi (169) - (169) -
Net gains from the sale of securit $ 64 $ - 3 64 $ -

The following table details the amortized cost &aid value of the Company’s securities classifiedhald-tomaturity at June 30, 2015, by contrac
maturity.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Securities held-to-maturity: @)

Due in one year or les $ 6,14C $ 6,14(
Due after one year through five ye 1,08( 1,08(
Total securities held-to-maturity $ 7,22C  $ 7,22(

(1) Expected maturities may differ from contractual mngies because borrowers may have the right tbazgbrepay obligations with or withc
call or prepayment penaltie



PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table details the amortized cost #aid value of the Compang’securities classified as available for sale ae R0, 2015, by contract
maturity.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Securities available for sale®

Due in one year or les $ 32,04¢ $ 32,23:
Due after one year through five ye 15,00( 15,29¢
Due after five years through ten ye 92,077 90,74
Due after ten years 166,85: 169,55:
Total other securitie 305,97¢ 307,82¢
Mortgage-backed securities 727,58 729,67«
Total securities available for sale $ 1,03355¢ $ 1,037,49
1) Expected maturities may differ from contractual umities because borrowers may have the right tb araprepay obligations with

without call or prepayment penaltie

The following table shows the Compasydvailable for sale securities with gross unredlitbsses and their fair value aggregated by categal lengt
of time the individual securities had been in atowrous unrealized loss position at June 30, 2015:

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 53,27F $ 1,728 $ 38,41: $ 1,587 $ 14,86: $ 13€
Municipals 17,077 13C 17,077 13C - -
Other 29¢ 2 29¢ 2 - -
Total other securities 70,65( 1,857 55,78¢ 1,71¢ 14,86: 13€
REMIC and CMC 245,10° 4,187 141,76( 1,20¢ 103,34 2,982
GNMA 7,727 125 7,727 125 - -
FNMA 100,60¢ 1,93¢ 68,60 1,04( 32,00« 89¢
Total mortgage-backed securities 353,44 6,24¢ 218,09: 2,36¢ 135,35 3,881
Total securities available for sale $ 424,09. $ 8,106 $ 273,87¢ $ 4081 $ 150,21 $ 4,01¢

OTTI losses on impaired securities must be fullsognized in earnings if an investor has the intersiell the debt security or if it is more likelyan no
that the investor will be required to sell the dsbturity before recovery of its amortized costwideer, even if an investor does not expect toasekb
security, the investor must evaluate the expectsth dlows to be received and determine if a ciedit has occurred. In the event that a credit has
occurred, only the amount of impairment associatétl the credit loss is recognized in earningshia €onsolidated Statements of Income. Amc
relating to factors other than credit losses acended in accumulated other comprehensive inco®®Cl”) within Stockholders’ Equity.

The Company reviewed each investment that had aealired loss at June 30, 2015. An unrealized é8sts when the current fair value of
investment is less than its amortized cost basiseaélized losses on available for sale securitiest,are deemed to be temporary, are recorded G4
net of tax. Unrealized losses that are considesduetother-thamemporary are split between credit related and reglicrelated impairments, with t
credit related impairment being recorded as a eagginst earnings and the noncredit related immgait being recorded in AOCI, net of tax.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Corporate:

The unrealized losses in Corporate securities a¢ B0, 2015 consist of losses on seven Corporai@ises. The unrealized losses were cause
movements in interest rates. It is not anticipdteat these securities would be settled at a pheéis less than the amortized cost of the Company’
investment. Each of these securities is perforngiogording to its terms and, in the opinion of mamagnt, will continue to perform according ta
terms. The Company does not have the intent tatsedle securities and it is more likely than net@ompany will not be required to sell the seces
before recovery of the securities’ amortized castid This conclusion is based upon considerindCibrapanys cash and working capital requiremt
and contractual and regulatory obligations, nonath the Company believes would cause the satheokecurities. Therefore, the Company dic
consider these investments to be other-than-terriporapaired at June 30, 2015.

Municipal Securities:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities ateJ80, 2015, consist of losses on five Municipausigies. The unrealized losses were cause
movements in interest rates. It is not anticipdteat these securities would be settled at a pheéis less than the amortized cost of the Company’
investment. Each of these securities is perfornsiogprding to its terms and, in the opinion of mamagnt, will continue to perform according to
terms. The Company does not have the intent tatsedle securities and it is more likely than net@ompany will not be required to sell the seces
before recovery of the securities’ amortized castid This conclusion is based upon considerindCibrapanys cash and working capital requiremt
and contractual and regulatory obligations, nona/th the Company believes would cause the satheokecurities. Therefore, the Company dic
consider these investments to be other-than-terriporapaired at June 30, 2015.

Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at JOne@@15, consist of a loss on one single issuest fpreferred security. The unrealized losses &
security were caused by market interest volatilaysignificant widening of credit spreads acrosgketa for these securities and illiquidity
uncertainty in the financial markets. This secuidtycurrently rated below investment grade. Itd$ anticipated that this security would be settéd
price that is less than the amortized cost of tleen@anys investment. This security is performing accordiogits terms and, in the opinion
management, will continue to perform accordingt$aérms. The Company does not have the intergltdhgs security and it is more likely than noe
Company will not be required to sell this secutisfore recovery of the securisyamortized cost basis. This conclusion is baseuh wpnsidering tt
Companys cash and working capital requirements and coniadand regulatory obligations, none of which @@mpany believes would cause the
of the security. Therefore, the Company did notsader this investment to be other-than-temporanilgaired at June 30, 2015.

REMIC and CMO:

The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage tmearg Conduit (“REMIC™)and CMO securities at June 30, 2015 consist o64@eis from the Fede
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC"), 14 issdesm the Federal National Mortgage AssociationNW#A”) and nine issues from Governm
National Mortgage Associatior"GNMA”). The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO seesrigsued by FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA we
caused by movements in interest rates. It is ntitipated that these securities would be settled ptice that is less than the amortized cost €
Companys investment. Each of these securities is perfagnaiccording to its terms, and, in the opinion ofnagement, will continue to perfo
according to its terms. The Company does not Haéntent to sell these securities and it is mikedy than not the Company will not be requiredsédl
the securities before recovery of the securitiesbdized cost basis. This conclusion is based womsidering the Compars/cash and working capi
requirements, and contractual and regulatory otitiga, none of which the Company believes wouldseathe sale of the securities. Therefore
Company did not consider these investments to lherdhan-temporarily impaired at June 30, 2015.

GNMA:

The unrealized losses in GNMA securities at June2B@5 consist of a loss on one security. The Ui@ezhlosses were caused by movements in ini
rates. It is not anticipated that this security Wdolbe settled at a price that is less than the tineor cost of the Compars/investment. This security
performing according to its terms and, in the a@inof management, will continue to perform accogdin its terms. The Company does not havi
intent to sell this security and it is more likehan not the Company will not be required to sell security before recovery of the secustgmortize
cost basis. This conclusion is based upon consigehe Company cash and working capital requirements and coizh@nd regulatory obligatior
none of which the Company believes would causestie of the security. Therefore, the Company ditl comsider this security to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at June 30, 2015.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

FNMA:

The unrealized losses in FNMA securities at June28@5 consist of losses on 17 securities. Thealizesl losses were caused by movements in in
rates. It is not anticipated that these securitiesld be settled at a price that is less than thertized cost of the Comparsyinvestment. Each of the
securities is performing according to its terms,andhe opinion of management, will continue tafpem according to its terms. The Company doe:
have the intent to sell these securities and in@e likely than not the Company will not be reeqdirto sell the securities before recovery ol
securities’ amortized cost basis. This conclus®ibased upon considering the Compamgash and working capital requirements and cot@hanc
regulatory obligations, none of which the Compargfidves will cause the sale of the securities. &foee, the Company did not consider tt
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaireduame 30, 2015.

The following table shows the Compasyvailable for sale securities with gross unredlilbsses and their fair value, aggregated by oageand lengt
of time that individual securities had been in atowious unrealized loss position, at Decembe2814.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands

Corporate $ 39,287 $ 714 $ 9,57 $ 428 $ 29,71 $ 28¢€
Municipals 8,81( 61 3,54¢ 11 5,26¢ 50
Other 292 8 - - 292 8
Total other securities 48,38¢ 78¢ 13,11¢ 43¢ 35,27( 344
REMIC and CMC 216,19( 4,627 77,38 39¢ 138,80¢ 4,22¢
GNMA 8,35¢ 124 - - 8,35¢ 124
FNMA 95,14¢ 1,717 - - 95,14¢ 1,717
FHLMC 6,777 8 6,77 8 - -
Total mortgage-backed securities 326,46¢ 6,47¢ 84,15t 407 242,31« 6,06¢
Total securities available for sale $ 374,85¢ $ 7,25¢ $ 97,27: $ 84 $ 27758: $ 6,41:

5. Loans

Loans are reported at their principal outstandiatafice net of any unearned income, chaf@e-deferred loan fees and costs on originatatidaan
unamortized premiums or discounts on purchasedsldaterest on loans is recognized on the accrasisbThe accrual of income on loans is gene
discontinued when certain factors, such as contshatelinquency of 90 days or more, indicate reabndoubt as to the timely collectability of s
income. Uncollected interest previously recognipadnon-accrual loans is reversed from interestriteat the time the loan is placed on rmmcrua
status. A noraccrual loan can be returned to accrual status veoatractual delinquency returns to less than 9 dielinquent. Subsequent ¢
payments received on natcrual loans that do not bring the loan to leas B0 days delinquent are recorded on a cash Isadisequent cash payme
can also be applied first as a reduction of prialcimtil all principal is recovered and then suhsayly to interest, if in managemesntpinion, it i
evident that recovery of all principal due is likgb occur. Loan fees and certain loan originatboists are deferred. Net loan origination costs
premiums or discounts on loans purchased are aredriinto interest income over the contractual tifethe loans using the levgleld methoc
Prepayment penalties received on loans which p&yliprior to their scheduled maturity are incladi@ interest income in the period they are co#idct
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
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(Unaudited)

The Company maintains an allowance for loan lossem amount, which, in managemsrjtidgment, is adequate to absorb probable estitasse
inherent in the loan portfolio. Managemenijtidgment in determining the adequacy of the alowe is based on evaluations of the collectalofitpans
This evaluation is inherently subjective, as ituiegs estimates that are susceptible to significavisions as more information becomes available
allowance is established through a provision fanltosses based on managensataluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponents of the lo:
portfolio and other factors, including historicalah loss experience (which is updated quarteriyjrent economic conditions, delinquency and non-
accrual trends, classified loan levels, risk in guoetfolio and volumes and trends in loan typeseng trends in chargeffs, changes in underwritil
standards, experience, ability and depth of the @om's lenders, collection policies and experience rigkloan review function and other extel
factors. The Company segregated its loans into pendfolios based on year of origination. One pditfovas reviewed for loans originated a
December 31, 2009 and a second portfolio for laaiginated prior to January 1, 2010. Our decisiorseégregate the portfolio based upon origini
dates was based on changes made in our underwstingards during 2009. By the end of 2009, athdoaere being underwritten based on revisec
tightened underwriting standards. Loans origingigdr to 2010 have a higher delinquency rate amsg lustory. Each of the years in the portfolic
loans originated prior to 2010 has a similar delercy rate. The determination of the amount ofalf@vance for loan losses includes estimates tte
susceptible to significant changes due to changapjpraisal values of collateral, national and llecanomic conditions and other factors. We review
loan portfolio by separate categories with similiak and collateral characteristics. Impaired loans segregated and reviewed separately. All non
accrual loans are classified as impaired loans.ddm@pany’s Board of Directors reviews and appravasagemens evaluation of the adequacy of
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis.

The allowance for loan losses is established throcitarges to earnings in the form of a provision léan losses. Increases and decreases
allowance other than chargéfs and recoveries are included in the provisionlban losses. When a loan or a portion of a ligadetermined to t
uncollectible, the portion deemed uncollectiblelisrged against the allowance, and subsequentagesyif any, are credited to the allowance.

The Company recognizes a loan as performing when the borrower has demonstrated madility to bring the loan current, or due to o
circumstances which, in managemsntipinion, indicate the borrower will be unablebiong the loan current within a reasonable timd. 18&ns
classified as non-performing, which includes a#irle past due 90 days or more, are classified ascoal unless there is, in our opinion, compe
evidence the borrower will bring the loan curremttie immediate future. Appraisals are obtainedandpdated internal evaluations are prepare
soon as practical, and before the loan becomesa96 delinquent. The loan balances of collateraleddpnt impaired loans are compared tc
propertys updated fair value. The Company considers fdirevaf collateral dependent loans to be 85% ofajgraised or internally estimated valu
the property. The balance which exceeds fair vedgenerally chargedff. The 85% is based on the actual net proceeel8#nk has received from 1
sale of other real estate owned (“OREQO") as a peace of OREO’s appraised value.

A loan is considered impaired when, based uporeatiinformation, the Company believes it is prokabht it will be unable to collect all amounts ¢
both principal and interest, in accordance with dhiginal terms of the loan. Impaired loans are soead based on the present value of the exg
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effexiiverest rate or at the losndbservable market price or, as a practical exmdihe fair value of tt
collateral if the loan is collateral dependentetest income on impaired loans is recorded on #éisé basis. The Compasynanagement considers
non-accrual loans impaired.

The Company reviews each impaired loan on an iddali basis to determine if either a chaafeer a valuation allowance needs to be allocatethe
loan. The Company does not chaxfé-or allocate a valuation allowance to loans ¥anich management has concluded the current valughe
underlying collateral will allow for recovery ofeHoan balance either through the sale of the twdy foreclosure and sale of the property.

The Company evaluates the underlying collateralugh a third party appraisal, or when a third pappraisal is not available, the Company will us
internal evaluation. The internal evaluations areppred using an income approach or a sales apprd&e income approach is used for inc
producing properties and uses current revenuesopsriting expenses to determine the net cash diothe property. Once the net cash flov
determined, the value of the property is calculaisithg an appropriate capitalization rate for thepprty. The sales approach uses comparable
prices in the market. When an internal evaluatioused, we place greater reliance on the incomeagip to value the collateral.

In preparing internal evaluations of property valufie Company seeks to obtain current data osubject property from various sources, includirig
the borrower; (2) copies of existing leases; (8plaeal estate brokers and appraisers; (4) pubtiords (such as for real estate taxes and watkseme
charges); (5) comparable sales and rental dateeimtarket; (6) an inspection of the property andr{ferviews with tenants. These internal evalus
primarily focus on the income approach and comparsdles data to value the property.
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

As of June 30, 2015, we utilized recent third paypraisals of the collateral to measure impairni@n$26.0 million, or 65.9%, of collateral depent
impaired loans, and used internal evaluations ®fitoperty’s value for $13.5 million, or 34.1%,aufllateral dependent impaired loans.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable aWwerrexperiencing financial difficulties to contmmmaking payments when it is deemed to be i
Company’s best longerm interest. This restructure may include redgidite interest rate or amount of the monthly paynfiena specified period
time, after which the interest rate and repaymemns revert to the original terms of the loan. Viassify these loans as Troubled Debt Restruc
(“TDR").

These restructurings have not included a reduaifogprincipal balance. The Company believes thatrweturing these loans in this manner will al
certain borrowers to become and remain currentheir toans. Restructured loans are classified @B when the Bank grants a concession
borrower who is experiencing financial difficultiesll loans classified as TDR are considered imgihowever TDR loans which have been curret
six consecutive months at the time they are restrad as TDR remain on accrual status and arenetided as part of noperforming loans. Loal
which were delinquent at the time they are restmect as a TDR are placed on non-accrual statusegated as noperforming loans until they ha
made timely payments for six consecutive monthsrisothat are restructured as TDR but are not paifigrin accordance with the restructured te
are placed on non-accrual status and reportedraperdorming loans.

The allocation of a portion of the allowance foarolosses for a performing TDR loan is based upemtesent value of the future expected cash
discounted at the loan’s original effective ratefar a nonperforming TDR which is collateral dependent, the falue of the collateral. At June
2015, there were no commitments to lend additifunadls to borrowers whose loans were modified td&TThe modification of loans to a TDR did
have a significant effect on our operating results,did it require a significant allocation of talbowance for loan losses.

The following table shows loans modified and clfisdias TDR during the period indicated:

For the six months ended

June 30, 201
(Dollars in thousands Number Balance Modification descriptior
Small Business Administration 1 $ 41 Received a below market

interest rate and the loan
amortization was extended

Total 1 $ 41

The recorded investment of the loan modified ardsified as a TDR, presented in the table above,unahanged as there was no principal forgiv:
this modification.

The Bank did not modify and classify any loans BRTduring the three months ended June 30, 2015B&hé& did not modify and classify any loan:
TDR during the three or six months ended June G042
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The following table shows our recorded investmemtlbans classified as TDR that are performing ediog to their restructured terms at the per
indicated:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number Recorded Number Recorded

(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 9 $ 2,657 10 $ 3,03¢
Commercial real esta 3 2,35¢ 3 2,37:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7 2,35¢ 7 2,381
One-to-four family - residentia 1 34¢ 1 354
Small business administratit 1 39 - -
Commercial business and ott 4 2,167 4 2,24¢
Total performing troubled debt restructured 25 $ 9,92¢ 25 $ 10,39:

During the six months ended June 30, 2015 one Td&2R bf $0.4 million was transferred to nperforming status, which resulted in this loan g
included in non-performing loans.

The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are not perforngiagording to their restructured terms at the pa
indicated:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Number Recorded Number Recorded
(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 1 $ 37¢ - $ =
Commercial real esta - 1 2,252
One-to-four family - mixed use propert 1 187 1 187
Total troubled debt restructurings that subsegyetefaulted 2 3% 565 2 % 2,43¢

-15-



PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
The following table shows our non-performing loatshe periods indicated:

June 30, December 31,

(In thousands 2015 2014
Loans ninety days or more past due and still accruaig:
Multi-family residentia $ - $ 67€
Commercial real esta 41€ 82C
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 358 40&
One-to-four family - residentia 13 14
Commercial Business and other 31E 38¢€
Total 1,097 2,301
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 6,352 6,87¢
Commercial real esta 2,69 5,68¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 6,23¢ 6,93¢
One-to-four family - residential 11,32¢ 11,24«
Total 26,61: 30,743
Non-accrual nor-mortgage loans:
Small business administrati 17C -
Commercial business and other 537 1,14:
Total 707 1,148
Total non-accrual loans 27,32( 31,89(
Total non-accrual loans and loans ninety days or more past @uand still accruing $ 28,417 $ 34,19!

The following is a summary of interest foregonenmm-accrual loans and loans classified as TDRHeperiods indicated:

For the three months ended For the six months ended
June 30 June 30

2015 2014 2015 2014
(In thousands

Interest income that would have been recognizedimratbans performed in

accordance with their original terr $ 66z $ 98¢ $ 1,31 $ 1,97¢
Less: Interest income included in the resultspErations 142 151 301 31€
Total foregone interest $ 51¢ $ 83¢ $ 1,01z $ 1,661
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The following table shows an age analysis of ooorded investment in loans at June 30, 2015:

Greater
30-59 Days 60 - 89 Days than Total Past

(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
Multi-family residentia $ 7,28¢ $ - 9 6,20¢ $ 13,49¢ $ 2,004,39: $ 2,017,89
Commercial real esta 862 417 3,11C 4,38¢ 721,74 726,13t
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 8,01¢ 58¢ 6,591 15,19¢ 551,86: 567,06(
One-to-four family - residentia 524 354 11,13¢ 12,01¢ 177,55 189,57
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - 7,681 7,681
Construction loan - - - - 3,67: 3,67:
Small Business Administratic 12¢€ - 17C 29¢ 11,88: 12,18:
Taxi medallion - - - - 21,21: 21,21:
Commercial business and other 5 46€ 74¢€ 1,217 471,26¢ 472,48"

Total $ 16,827 $ 1,82t $ 27,96: $ 46,61¢ $ 3,971,27" $ 4,017,89
The following table shows an age analysis of oooréed investment in loans at December 31, 2014:

Greater
30-59 Days 60 - 89 Days than Total Past

(in thousands Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
Multi-family residentia $ 7,721 $ 1,72¢  $ 755¢ $ 17,00c $ 1,906,45 $ 1,923,46!
Commercial real esta 2,171 1,34¢ 6,51( 10,02¢ 611,54« 621,56¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 10,40¢ 1,154 7,341 18,90: 554,87¢ 573,77¢
One-to-four family - residentia 1,751 2,24¢ 11,05! 15,04¢ 172,52¢ 187,57
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - 9,83¢ 9,83¢
Construction loan 3,00(C - - 3,00( 2,28¢ 5,28¢
Small Business Administratic a0 - - a0 7,04¢ 7,13¢
Taxi medallion - - - - 22,51¢ 22,51¢
Commercial business and other 6 1,58¢ 74C 2,331 445,16¢ 447 ,50(

Total $ 25,147 $ 8,05¢ $ 33,19¢ $ 66,39¢ $ 3,732,25' $ 3,798,65.
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the three months endeel 30n2015:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to- Commercia
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small business
family Commercie  use family-  operative Constructior  Business Taxi and
(in thousands residentia real estatt property residentiz apartment loans  Administratior Medallion  other Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 862¢$% 390z 9% 542¢$ 1,46 $ - $ 23 $ 266 $ 11 $ 4,366 $ 24,09:
Chargewoffs (303 (14) (399 (91) - - - - (@) (803)
Recoverie: 191 4 44 74 - - 7 - - 312
Provision (Benefit) (217) (15¢) 101 (15) - 6 18 - (257) (51€)
Ending balance $ 830C$ 3,72¢ $ 518( $ 1,43 $ -$ 2¢ $ 291 $ 11$ 411¢ $ 23,08
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment  $ 262 $ 17 $ 507 $ 53 $ - $ - $ -3 - $ 127 $ 967
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $ 8037 $ 3,70¢ $ 467 $ 1,38( $ -3 28 % 291 $ 11 $ 398 $ 22,117
Financing Receivables
Ending Balance $2,017,89. $ 726,13t $567,06( $189,57. $ 7,681 $ 3,67: % 12,18: $ 21,21 $ 472,48' $4,017,89.
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment ¢ 11,56 $ 570z $ 13,22: $ 13,66: $ 612 $ - $ 348 $ -$ 553 $ 5064

Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $2,006,32' $ 720,43 $553,83¢ $17591: $ 7,066 $ 3,67 $ 11,83 $ 21,217 $ 466,95. $3,967,25I
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the three months endeel 30n2014:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to-
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small Commercia
family Commercie  use family-  operative Constructior  Business Taxi business
(in thousands residentia real estatt property residentiz apartment loans  Administratior Medallion and othe Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 11,100 $ 537¢ $ 7,142 $ 194 % - $ 4C $ 391 $ 14 $ 425 $ 30,27(
Chargewoffs (69) (39) as) (37) - - (49) - (@) (370
Recoverie: 134 - 95 97 - - 51 - 5C 427
Provision (Benefit) (41€) (13) (69) (214) - (6) (20) - (352) (1,092
Ending balance $ 10,75($ 53271 $ 6,99: % 1,79C $ -$ 34 $ 37 % 14 $ 395« $ 29,23t
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment  $ 29¢ $ 197 $ 601 % 56 $ - $ - $ -3 - $ 15 $  1,30¢
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $ 1045:$ 513( $ 6,392 $ 1,73¢ $ -3 34 % 37: % 14 $ 3,80« $ 27,93.
Financing Receivables
Ending Balance $1,784,11. $ 510,22« $581,20° $192,89' $ 9,88t $ 4717 $ 7,547 $ 25,29. $ 405,85 $3,521,72
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment ¢ 20,61 $ 16,72¢ $ 16,70 $ 13,50 $ - $ 57C $ - $ -$  7,.89¢ $ 76,01

Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $1,763,49; $ 493,49t $564,50: $179,39( $ 9,88t § 4,147 $ 7,547 $ 25,29. $ 397,95 $3,445,70
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the six months ended 30n2015:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to- Commercia
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small business
family Commercie  use family-  operative Constructior  Business Taxi and
(in thousands residentia real estatt property residentiz apartment loans  Administratior Medallion  other Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 8821 $ 420z % 584($ 169 $ - $ 42 % 27¢ $ 11 $ 4,208 $ 25,09¢
Chargewoffs (400) (32 (472) (2449 - - - - (52) (1,200
Recoverie: 214 68 47 74 - - 27 - 8 43¢
Provision (Benefit) (341) (512) (235) (87) - (13) (15) - (47) (1,250
Ending balance $ 830C$ 3,72¢ $ 518( $ 1,43 $ -$ 2¢ $ 291 $ 11$ 411¢ $ 23,08
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment  $ 262 $ 17 $ 507 $ 53 $ - $ - $ -3 - $ 127 $ 967
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $ 8037 $ 3,70¢ $ 467 $ 1,38( $ -3 28 % 291 $ 11 $ 398 $ 22,117
Financing Receivables
Ending Balance $2,017,89. $ 726,13t $567,06( $189,57. $ 7,681 $ 3,67: % 12,18: $ 21,21 $ 472,48' $4,017,89.
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment ¢ 11,56 $ 570z $ 13,22: $ 13,66: $ 612 $ - $ 348 $ -$ 553 $ 5064

Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $2,006,32' $ 720,43 $553,83¢ $17591: $ 7,066 $ 3,67 $ 11,83 $ 21,217 $ 466,95. $3,967,25I
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the six months ended 30n2014:

One-to-
four
family -  One-to- Commercia
Multi- mixed- four Co- Small business
family Commercie  use family-  operative Constructior  Business Taxi and
(in thousands residentia real estatt property residentiz apartment loans  Administratior Medallion  other Total
Allowance for credit losses
Beginning balanc $ 12,08 $ 495¢ $ 6,32¢ $ 2,07¢ $ 104 $ 444 $ 45¢ % -$ 5320 % 31,77¢
Chargewoffs (674 (86) (25¢) (79) - - (49) - (225 (1,27))
Recoverie: 141 382 13t 16t 7 - 61 - 5C 941
Provision (Benefit) (801 72 78¢ (375 (111 (410 (97) 14 (1,29]) (2,21
Ending balance $ 10,75($ 53271 $ 6,99: % 1,79C $ -$ 34 $ 37 % 14 $ 395« $ 29,23t
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment  $ 29¢ $ 197 $ 601 % 56 $ - $ - $ -3 - $ 15 $  1,30¢
Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $ 1045:$ 513( $ 6,392 $ 1,73¢ $ -3 34 % 37: % 14 $ 3,80« $ 27,93.
Financing Receivables
Ending Balance $1,784,11. $ 510,22« $581,20° $192,89' $ 9,88t $ 4717 $ 7,547 $ 25,29. $ 405,85 $3,521,72
Ending balance: individuall
evaluated for impairment ¢ 20,61 $ 16,72¢ $ 16,70 $ 13,50 $ - $ 57C $ - $ -$  7,.89¢ $ 76,01

Ending balance: collectivel
evaluated for impairment $1,763,49; $ 493,49t $564,50: $179,39( $ 9,88t § 4,147 $ 7,547 $ 25,29. $ 397,95 $3,445,70
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The following table shows our recorded investmemipaid principal balance, allocated allowance fmanl losses, average recorded investmen
interest income recognized for loans that were idened impaired at or for the six months ended Bihe015:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen  Recognizec

(In thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 9,232 $ 10,05 $ - % 10,347 $ 77
Commercial real esta 5,162 5,22( - 6,09¢ 71
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 10,16( 11,74: - 11,21¢ 103
One-to-four family residentia 13,31 16,19( - 13,24« 42
Cc-operative apartmen 61z 61z - 204 10
Constructior - - - - -
Non-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic 30¢ 30¢ - 20¢ 6
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and other 2,971 3,341 - 3,997 10C

Total loans with no related allowance recorded 41,76 47,46¢ - 45,31¢ 40¢

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 2,33( 2,33( 265 2,50¢ 61

Commercial real esta 53¢ 53¢ 17 1,151 15

One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,061 3,061 507 3,071 84

One-to-four family residentia 34¢ 34¢ 53 351 7

Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -

Constructior - - - - -

Non-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic 39 39 - 27 1

Taxi Medallion - - - -

Commercial Business and other 2,56 2,56: 127 2,627 69
Total loans with an allowance recorded 8,88( 8,88( 967 9,741 237

Total Impaired Loans
Total mortgage loans

*»

44,76 $ 50,090 §$ 84C % 48,20 $ 47C
5881 $ 6,251 $ 127 $ 6,86( $ 17€

&

Total non-mortgage loans
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The following table shows our recorded investmanpaid principal balance, allocated allowance danllosses, average recorded investment and
interest income recognized for loans that were idensd impaired at or for the year ended Decembe@14:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen  Recognizec

(In thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 10,48: $ 11,55 $ - % 14,16¢ $ 194
Commercial real esta 7,10C 7,221 - 11,32¢ 51
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 12,02: 13,38! - 12,85: 321
One-to-four family residentia 12,81¢ 15,70¢ - 13,01¢ 10¢G
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior - - - 28E -

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion - = - -
Commercial Business and other 2,77¢ 3,14¢ - 3,42¢ 137

Total loans with no related allowance recorded 45,20: 51,01 - 55,077 80€

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 2,77¢ 2,77¢ 28¢ 2,93¢ 14¢
Commercial real esta 2,37¢ 2,37: 21 3,24z 167
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,09: 3,09: 57¢ 3,24¢ 17C
One-to-four family residentia 354 354 54 35¢ 14
Cc-operative apartmen - - - - -
Constructior - - - 187 -

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - - -
Taxi Medallion > - - - -

Commercial Business and other 2,71% 2,71% 154 3,14¢ 11¢F
Total loans with an allowance recorded 11,31 11,31 1,09/ 13,12: 61E

Total Impaired Loans
Total mortgage loans $ 51,02: % 56,46. $ 924C % 61,62. $ 1,16¢
Total non-mortgage loans $ 549: $ 586: $ 154 $ 6,571 $ 252

In accordance with our policy and the current ratprly guidelines, we designate loans as “Speciaitide,” which are considered “Criticized Loans,”
and “Substandard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss,” which aw®nsidered “Classified Loanstf a loan does not fall within one of the previooeentione:
categories then the loan would be considered “Pas®se loan designations are updated quarterly.déggnate a loan as Substandard when a well
defined weakness is identified that jeopardizesotiderly liquidation of the debt. We designate anl®oubtful when it displays the inherent weakraf

a Substandard loan with the added provision thiéea@n of the debt in full, on the basis of ekist facts, is highly improbable. We designate anlas
Loss if it is deemed the debtor is incapable ofiyapent. The Company does not hold any loans desidres Loss, as loans that are designated a:

are charged to the Allowance for Loan Losses. Ldhas are noraccrual are designated as Substandard or Doubtfelldesignate a loan as Spe
Mention if the asset does not warrant classificatidgthin one of the other classifications, but deesitain a potential weakness that deserves «
attention.
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The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Ciriticized or Classidiedune 30, 2015:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 3,85¢ $ 8,90 $ - 9 - $ 12,76:
Commercial real esta 2,697 3,347 - - 6,04<
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 4,94¢ 10,86: - - 15,80
One-to-four family - residentia 997 13,31 - - 14,31(
Cc-operative apartmen - 612 - - 612
Construction loan - - - - -
Small Business Administratic 241 2458 - - 484
Commercial business and other 1,69( 3,87¢ - - 5,56¢
Total loans $ 14,42¢  $ 41,16: $ - % - $ 55,59(

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Ciriticized or ClassidieDecember 31, 2014:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 6,49 $ 10,22¢ $ - % - % 16,72(
Commercial real esta 5,45¢ 7,10C - - 12,55:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 5,25¢ 12,49¢ - - 17,75:
One-to-four family - residentia 2,35z 13,05¢ - - 15,40¢
Cc-operative apartmen 6232 - - - 622
Construction loan - - - - -
Small Business Administratic 47¢ - - - 47¢
Commercial business and other 2,841 3,77¢ - - 6,62(
Total loans $ 23,49¢ $ 46,66( $ - 9 - $ 70,15¢

Commitments to extend credit (principally real éstaortgage loans and business loans) and linesedft (principally home equity lines of credit
business lines of credit) amounted to $131.4 milkad $202.4 million, respectively, at June 30,5201

6. Loans held for sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower ot codair value. At June 30, 2015, the Bank had ondti-family residential loan held for sale of $
million. At December 31, 2014, the Bank did not éany loans classified as held for sale.

The Company has implemented a strategy of sellantain delinquent and ngmerforming loans. Once the Company has decideélt@doan, the sa
usually closes in a short period of time, genenailthin the same quarter. Loans designated helddt are reclassified from loans held for investinte
loans held for sale. Terms of sale include cashupm the closing of thgale, no contingencies or recourse to the Compadyservicing is released
the buyer.
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The following table shows delinquent and non-periog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the three months ended

June 30, 201
Net (charg-offs)
(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: recoveries Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 2 $ 1,048 $ 137 $ -
Commercial real esta 1 1,311 - -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 4 1,15(C - 47
Total 7 9 3,50¢€ $ 137 % 47

The following table shows delinquent and non-periog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the three months ended

June 30, 201
Net (charg-offs)
(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: recoveries Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 3 $ 1,47¢ $ 76 % -
Commercial real esta 1 43C - -
Total 4 % 1,90¢ $ 7€ $ -

The following table shows delinquent and non-periag loans sold during the period indicated:

For the six months ended

June 30, 201
Net (charg-offs)

(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: recoveries Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 4 3 1,881 $ 137 $ 2
Commercial real esta 1 1,311 - -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7 1,83¢ - 51

Total 12 $ 5,026 $ 137 $ 49
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The following table shows delinquent and non-periog loans sold during the period indicated:

For the six months ended

June 30, 201
Net (charg-offs)
(Dollars in thousands Loans solc Proceed: recoveries Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 7 $ 3,21¢ $ (70 $ =
Commercial real esta 3 2,047 29¢ -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 6 2,06¢ 38 -
Total 16 $ 7332 $ 26 $ =

7.  Other Real Estate Ownec
The following are changes in OREO during the peimdiicated:

For the three months ended For the six months ended

June 30 June 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In thousands
Balance at beginning of peric $ 525z $ 1,70C $ 6,32¢ $ 2,98t
Acquisitions 28¢ 491 772 60€
Recovery (writ-down) of carrying valu (89¢€) 49 (89€) )
Sales (390) (899 (1,947 (2,240
Balance at end of period $ 4255 $ 1,34¢ $ 4255 $ 1,34¢

The following table shows the gross gains, grossde and writeowns of OREO reported in the Consolidated Statésnginincome during the peric
indicated:

For the three months ended For the six months ended

June 30 June 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
(In thousands
Gross gain: $ 86 $ 777 % 30z $ 131
Gross losse - - (6) (30
Recovery (writ-down) of carrying valu (89€) 49 (89€) (5)
Total gain (loss) $ (810) $ 126 $ (600) $ 96

We may obtain physical possession of residential estate collaterizing a consumer mortgage loanfaieclosure on an isdbstance repossess
During the three and six months ended June 30, 2@18id not foreclose on any consumer mortgagesgir in-substance repossession.
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8. Repurchase Agreement:

As part of the Company’strategy to finance investment opportunities madage its cost of funds, the Company enters ggarchase agreements v
broker-dealers and the Federal Home Loan Bank off Nerk (“FHLB-NY”). These agreements are recorded as financing trémsacind th
obligations to repurchase are reflected as a iighil the consolidated financial statements. Téeusities underlying the agreements are delivevetie
broker-dealers or the FHLRY who arrange the transaction. The securities nemegistered in the name of the Company and arermed upon tr
maturity of the agreement. The Company retainsrigjiet of substitution of collateral throughout tteyms of the agreements. As a condition of
repurchase agreements the Company is requiredtidprsufficient collateral. If the fair value dfe collateral were to fall below the required Ik
Company is obligated to pledge additional colldtekll the repurchase agreements are collateralimethortgage-backed securities.

The following table shows securities pledged amdaiaing maturity of repurchase agreements helchdutie period indicated:

At June 30, 201!
Remaining Contractual Maturity of Agreeme
Less than 1 1yearto 3
year years Over 3 year: Total
(In thousands

Repurchase agreements
Mortgage-backed securities $ 18,000 $ 58,000 $ 40,00 $  116,00(
Total repurchase agreements $ 18,00C $ 58,000 $ 40,00 $  116,00(

The fair value of the collateral pledged for thpuehase agreements above was $134.4 million & 30n2015.
9. Stock-Based Compensatior

For the three months ended June 30, 2015 and 2044Companys net income, as reported, includes $0.9 milliod 6.6 million, respectively,

stock-based compensation costs and $0.3 milliors@r2l million, respectively, of income tax benefidated to the stockased compensation plans.
the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, thgp@uwy’s net income, as reported, includes $3.Ganitind $3.1 million, respectively, of stoblese!
compensation costs and $1.4 million and $1.2 mniJli@spectively, of income tax benefits relatethmstock-based compensation plans.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtiasing the Blaclscholes valuation model. Key assumptions usedtimate the fair value of sto
options include the exercise price of the award,dkpected option term, the expected volatilitghef Company’s stock price, the rifilee interest ra
over the optionsexpected term and the annual dividend yield. Then@any uses the fair value of the common stock endtite of award to meas
compensation cost for restricted stock unit awa@isnpensation cost is recognized over the vestangpg of the award using the straight line met
During the three months ended June 30, 2015, tmep@oy granted 3,600 restricted stock units. Thexeevmo restricted stock units granted during
three months ended June 30, 2014. During the sixtmscended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Companyedr@i8,120 and 264,095 restricted s
units, respectively. There were no stock optiomsited during the three and six months ended Jun203® and 2014.

The 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“2014 Omnibus Bléecame effective on May 20, 2014 after adoptionhgyBoard of Directors and approval
the stockholders. The 2014 Omnibus Plan authorthes Compensation Committee of the Company's BodrdDioectors (the Compensatio
Committee”) to grant a variety of equity compensatawards as well as longrm and annual cash incentive awards, all of wheh, but need not,
structured so as to comply with Section 162(m)hef Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended [therfial Revenue Code"The 2014 Omnibt
Plan authorizes the issuance of 1,100,000 shacethelTextent that an award under the 2014 Omnilarsi® cancelled, expired, forfeited, settled istt
settled by issuance of fewer shares than the numimerlying the award, or otherwise terminated withdelivery of shares to a participant in payr
of the exercise price or taxes relating to an aywrel shares retained by or returned to the Compélhpe available for future issuance under th&4
Omnibus Plan. No further awards may be granted utide Companys 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan, 1996 Stock Optiaremtive Plan, and 19
Restricted Stock Incentive Plan (the “Prior Plan#&t) June 30, 2015, there were 783,230 shares alaifabdelivery in connection with awards un
the 2014 Omnibus Plan. To satisfy stock option @ses or fund restricted stock and restricted stodkawards, shares are issued from treasury sif
available; otherwise new shares are issued. Theeisgeprice per share of a stock option grant matybe less than the fair value of the common std
the Company, as defined in the Omnibus Plan, ondtite of grant and may not be re-priced without @approval of the Company’stockholder
Options, stock appreciation rights, restricted Istaestricted stock units and other stock basedrédsvgranted under the Omnibus Plan are gen
subject to a minimum vesting period of three yeaith stock options having a I@ar maximum contractual term. Other awards do hase i
contractual term of expiration. The Compensatiom@uittee is authorized to grant awards that vesnup@articipans retirement. These amounts
included in stock-based compensation expense dintleeof the participant’s retirement eligibility.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s retd stock unit (“‘RSU”awards under the 2014 Omnibus Plan and the PréorsRh the aggregate
or for the six months ended June 30, 2015:

WeightedAverage
Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value

Nor-vested at December 31, 20 373,15 $ 16.7¢
Granted 318,12( 19.1(
Vested (258,70() 17.37
Forfeited (7,320 18.4Z
Non-vested at June 30, 2015 425,25 $ 18.1(
Vested but unissued at June 30, 2015 288,42t $ 18.0¢

As of June 30, 2015, there was $6.7 million of ltotrecognized compensation cost related to vested full value awards granted under the Omi
Plan. That cost is expected to be recognized overightedaverage period of 3.5 years. The total fair valiaweards vested for the three months el
June 30, 2015 was $0.8 million. There were no asvaested for the three months ended June 30, A0Atotal fair value of awards vested for the
months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $4.9 mdla $4.1 million, respectively. The vested bussmed RSU awards consist of awards ma
employees and directors who are eligible for retgat. According to the terms of these awards, wipintvide for vesting upon retirement, th
employees and directors have no risk of forfeitdieese shares will be issued at the original cehied vesting and settlement dates. As of Jun
2015, there is no remaining unrecognized compesrsatist related to stock options granted.
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The following table summarizes certain informatiegarding the stock option awards under the Omnitdas and the Prior Plans in the aggregate
for the six months ended June 30, 2015:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Shares Price Term ($000)*
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 154,91 $ 15.1¢
Granted - -
Exercisec (9,72%) 16.6¢
Forfeited - -
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 145,19C $ 15.0¢ 3.1 $ 860

* The intrinsic value of a stock option is the difénce between the fair value of the underlyingksand the exercise price of the option.

Cash proceeds, fair value received, tax benefitd,iatrinsic value related to stock options exexdjsand the weighted average grant date fair Valt
options granted, during the three and six montldeérdune 30, 2015 and 2014 are provided in thewalg table:

For the three months ended For the six months ended

June 30 June 30
(In thousands 2015 2014 2015 2014
Proceeds from stock options exerci: $ 142 % 87 $ 142 % 42¢
Fair value of shares received upon exercised aksiptions - 812 20 1,29(
Tax benefit related to stock options exerci 8 24 9 93
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 31 10& 33 317

Phantom Stock PlarThe Company maintains a noualified phantom stock plan as a supplement tgitdit sharing plan for officers who he
achieved the level of Senior Vice President Il atbdve and completed one year of service. HoweWeGemior Vice Presidents level Il and V
Presidents who were participants on January 315 2&ain eligible to participate in the phantonrcktplan. Awards are made under this plan on ce
compensation not eligible for awards made underpiiodit sharing plan, due to the terms of the grefiaring plan and the Internal Revenue C
Employees receive awards under this plan propat®io the amount they would have received undeptbfit sharing plan, but for limits imposed
the profit sharing plan and the Internal RevenudeCdhe awards are made as cash awards, and theerisnl to common stock equivalents (phar
shares) at the then current fair value of the Caomisgacommon stock. Dividends are credited to eatipleyees account in the form of additior
phantom shares each time the Company pays a divigielits common stock. In the event of a changeoatrol (as defined in this plan), an employee’
interest is converted to a fixed dollar amount a@e#med to be invested in the same manner as leieesntin the Bank’s nogualified deferre
compensation plan. Employees vest under this pl&a fer year for the first 5 years of employment arel 100% vested thereafter. Employees
become 100% vested upon a change of control. Eraptoyeceive their vested interest in this planhim form of a cash lump sum paymen
installments, as elected by the employee, afteniteation of employment. The Company adjusts itsiliy under this plan to the fair value of the sbs
at the end of each period.
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The following table summarizes the Phantom Stoek Rk or for the six months ended June 30, 2015:

Phantom Stock Pla Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2C 67,11 $ 20.27
Granted 11,72¢ 19.2¢
Forfeited 2 20.5¢
Distributions (457) 19.6¢
Outstanding at June 30, 2015 78,38¢ $ 21.01
Vested at June 30, 2015 78,11¢ $ 21.01

The Company recorded stoblesed compensation expense (benefit) for the PimaStock Plan of $85,000 and ($25,000) for the thmemths ende
June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The totalilue of the distributions from the Phantom St8t&n was $1,000 and $7,000 for the three mi
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

For the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 20&4Cdmpany recorded stotlased compensation expense for the Phantom StankolP$94,000 ar
$17,000, respectively. The total fair value of thstributions from the Phantom Stock Plan during $ix months ended June 30, 2015 and 201«
$9,000 and $13,000, respectively.

10. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plan

The following table sets forth information regamlithe components of net expense for the pensiom#med postretirement benefit plans.

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30 June 30
(In thousands 2015 2014 2015 2014
Employee Pension Pla
Interest cos $ 221 % 22 % 44z  $ 44¢€
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 29C 19C 581 38C
Expected return on plan assets (350) (33€) (700 (672)
Net employee pension expense $ 161 $ 77 $ 32 % 154
Outside Director Pension Ple
Service cos $ 11 % 13 $ 22 % 26
Interest cos 24 29 48 58
Amortization of unrecognized ga ()] (15 (28) (30
Amortization of past service liability 10 10 20 20
Net outside director pension expense $ 31 % 37 % 62 $ 74
Other Postretirement Benefit Plal
Service cos $ 9% $ QN % 19C $ 18C
Interest cos 75 63 15C 12¢
Amortization of unrecognized lo: 30 - 60 =
Amortization of past service credit (22) (22) (43 (43
Net other postretirement expense $ 17¢  $ 131 $ 357 $ 265

The Company previously disclosed in its Consolidatnancial Statements for the year ended Decer@beR014 that it expects to contribute $
million and $0.2 million to the Outside Directorridon Plan (the “Outside Director Pension Plan') #re other postretirement benefit plans (tBete!
Postretirement Benefit Plansigspectively, during the year ending December 8152 The Company does not expect to make a cotibibto the
Employee Pension Plan (the “Employee Pension Pl&spf June 30, 2015, the Company has contribut€0®D to the Outside Director Pension |
and $37,000 to the Other Postretirement Benefitd?las of June 30, 2015, the Company has not réviseexpected contributions for the year en
December 31, 2015.
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11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company carries certain financial assets amhfial liabilities at fair value in accordance WiBAAP which defines fair value as the price
would be received to sell an asset or paid to fearssliability in an orderly transaction betweeanket participants at the measurement date, esieisli
framework for measuring fair value and expandsldsoes about fair value measurements. GAAP perenitities to choose to measure many final
instruments and certain other items at fair vaiielune 30, 2015, the Company carried financiatissand financial liabilities under the fair valyatior
with fair values of $32.2 million and $29.5 milliprespectively. At December 31, 2014, the Compaanyied financial assets and financial liabili
under the fair value option with fair values of $million and $28.8 million, respectively. The Cpamy did not elect to carry any additional finai
assets or financial liabilities under the fair valaption during the six months ended June 30, 20h%. Company elected to measure at fair \
securities with a cost of $5.0 million that wereghased during the six months ended June 30, ZDdAng the six months ended June 30, 2014
Company sold financial assets carried under thesédue option totaling $1.9 million.

The following table presents the financial assets #nancial liabilities reported at fair value wrdhe fair value option, and the changes in faiug
included in the Consolidated Statement of InconNet-gain (loss) from fair value adjustments, afoorthe periods ended as indicated:

Fair Value Fair Value Changes in Fair Values For Items Measured at Falind/
Measurement Measurements Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Opt

at June 30, at December 3 Three Months Ende Six Months Ende
(Dollars in thousands 2015 2014 June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201
Mortgage¢-backed securitie $ 4,037 $ 4,67¢ $ (28) $ 24 $ (36) ¢ 72
Other securitie 28,12: 27,91t (10¢) 172 89 497
Borrowed funds 29,47¢ 28,77 (1,229 154 (70%) 17¢
Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustme(® (2) $ (1,365 $ 35C $ (652) $ 74¢

(1) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentsented in the above table does not include nesd&insses) of $2.1 million and ($0.8) million
the three months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014atesgy, from the change in the fair value of et rate swap:

(2) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentsented in the above table does not include nesd&isses) of $0.8 million and ($1.8) million
the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, mesggcfrom the change in the fair value of intstreate swaps

Included in the fair value of the financial assatsl financial liabilities selected for the fair waloption is the accrued interest receivable oapkyfol
the related instrument. The Company reports aseisténcome or interest expense in the Consolidgtatement of Income, the interest receivab
payable on the financial instruments selectedHerfair value option at their respective contractates.

The borrowed funds had a contractual principal amhofi $61.9 million at both June 30, 2015 and Deoen81, 2014. The fair value of borrowed fu
includes accrued interest payable of $0.1 millibdume 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

The Company generally holds its earning asset&rdtian securities available for sale, to matuaityl settles its liabilities at maturity. Howeveair
value estimates are made at a specific point ie timd are based on relevant market informations& lestimates do not reflect any premium or disc
that could result from offering for sale at onedithe Company entire holdings of a particular instrument. Adingly, as assumptions change, suc
interest rates and prepayments, fair value estsratange and these amounts may not necessaridalized in an immediate sale.
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Disclosure of fair value does not require fair \ealoformation for items that do not meet the deifami of a financial instrument or certain otherdiirtia
instruments specifically excluded from its requissts. These items include core deposit intangibbes other customer relationships, premises
equipment, leases, income taxes and equity.

Further, fair value disclosure does not attemptaiae future income or business. These items maydterial and accordingly, the fair value inforra
presented does not purport to represent, nor sliolbddconstrued to represent, the underlying “radrr franchise value of the Company.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reporadair value are required to be measured basegitber: (1) quoted prices in active markets famiica
financial instruments (Level 1); (2) significantet observable inputs (Level 2); or (3) significanbbservable inputs (Level 3).

A description of the methods and significant asstiong utilized in estimating the fair value of tBempany$ assets and liabilities that are carried a
value on a recurring basis are as follows:

Level 1 —where quoted market prices are available in avectiarket. The Company did not value any of itetser liabilities that are carried at
value on a recurring basis as Level 1 at June @05 2nd December 31, 2014.

Level 2 —-when quoted market prices are not available, falwer is estimated using quoted market prices foilai financial instruments and adjusted
differences between the quoted instrument andristeuiment being valued. Fair value can also benastid by using pricing models, or discounted
flows. Pricing models primarily use marketsed or independently sourced market parametergpats, including, but not limited to, yield cus;
interest rates, equity or debt prices and crediéags. In addition to observable market informatimodels also incorporate maturity and cash
assumptions. At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2@i4| 2 included mortgage related securitiespomate debt, certain municipal securities, mt
funds and interest rate swaps.

Level 3 —when there is limited activity or less transpareacyund inputs to the valuation, financial instruntseare classified as Level 3. At June
2015 and December 31, 2014, Level 3 included certainicipal securities and trust preferred se@gitwned by and junior subordinated deben
issued by the Company.

The methods described above may produce fair vahasmay not be indicative of net realizable vatuereflective of future fair values. While 1
Company believes its valuation methods are apptgrand consistent with those of other market g@peits, the use of different methodoloc
assumptions and models to determine fair valuedhn financial instruments could produce différestimates of fair value at the reporting date.

The following table sets forth the assets and lités that are carried at fair value on a recigrrasis and the method that was used to deteriiméir
fair value, at June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(In thousands
Assets:
Mortgage-
backed
Securities  $ - $ - $ 729,67 $ 704930 $ - 3 - $ 729,67: $ 704,93
Other securitie - - 292,69¢ 245,76¢ 15,12¢ 22,60¢ 307,82: 268,37"
Interest rate
swaps - - 94 84 - - 94 84
Total assets $ - $ - $ 1022461 $ 950,78 $ 15,12 $ 22,60¢ $ 1,037,590 $ 973,39
Liabilities:
Borrowings $ - % - $ - $ - % 29,47¢ % 28,77: % 29,47¢ % 28,77:
Interest rate
swaps - - 1,711 2,64¢ - - 1,711 2,64¢
Total liabilities $ - 3 - 3 1,711 $ 2,64¢ % 29,47¢ % 28,77: % 3,187 % 31,42(
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The following table sets forth the Company's asastkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the three months ended

June 30, 201
Trust
preferred Junior subordinate
Municipals  securities debenture:
(In
thousands

Beginning balanc $ 14,46: $ 7,18¢ $ 28,24*
Transfer to hel-to-maturity (4,510 - -
Principal repayment (55 - -
Maturities (2,000 - -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiasets included in earnin(?) - 37 -
Net loss from fair value adjustment of financiaHilities included in earnin¢® - - 1,22¢
Increase in accrued interest paye - - 2
Change in unrealized gains included in other cotmgmeive income - - -
Ending balance $ 7,89¢ $ 7,22¢ $ 29,47¢
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) held at pernod $ - 3 - $ -

(1) These totals in the table above are presentecittmsolidated Statement of Income under net dkiases) from fair value adjustmer

The following table sets forth the Company's asastkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the three months ended

June 30, 201
Trust
preferred Junior subordinate
Municipals  securities debenture:
(In
thousands

Beginning balanc $ 10,17C $ 13,05¢ $ 29,54:
Purchase 47t - -
Principal repayment (53 -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiasets included in earnin® - 28 -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financialtilities included in earning® = = (159)
Increase in accrued interest paye - - 1
Change in unrealized gains (losses) included irratbmprehensive income = 27¢ -
Ending balance $ 10,59: $ 13,36. $ 29,38¢
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) held at period $ - 3 27 $ =

(1) These totals in the table above are presentecittimsolidated Statement of Income under net dkiases) from fair value adjustmer
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The following table sets forth the Company's asastkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the six months ended

June 30, 201
Trust
preferred Junior subordinate
Municipals  securities debenture:
(In
thousands

Beginning balanc $ 15,51¢ $ 7,090 $ 28,77
Transfer to hel-to-maturity (4,510 - -
Purchase 1,00(¢ - -
Principal repayment (110 - -
Maturities (4,000 - -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiasets included in earnin(?) - 131 -
Net loss from fair value adjustment of financiaHilities included in earnin¢® - - 70%
Decrease in accrued interest pay: - - -
Change in unrealized gains (losses) included irratbmprehensive income = 5 =
Ending balance $ 7,89¢ $ 7,22¢ $ 29,47¢
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) held at period $ - 3 5 % =

(1) These totals in the table above are presentecittimsolidated Statement of Income under net dkiases) from fair value adjustmer

The following table sets forth the Company's asartsliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of the
valuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the six months ended

June 30, 201
Trust
preferred Junior subordinate
Municipals  securities debenture:
(In
thousands

Beginning balanc $ 9,22: $ 14,93t $ 29,57(
Purchase 2,47 - -
Principal repayment (1,206 - -
Sales - (1,879 -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financiasess included in earnind® - 55 -
Net gain from fair value adjustment of financialHilities included in earninc® - - 179
Decrease in accrued interest paye - - 3
Change in unrealized gains (losses) included isratbmprehensive income - 242 -
Ending balance $ 10,59: $ 13,36. $ 29,38¢
Changes in unrealized gains (losses) held at perdd $ - $ 24z $ -

(1) These totals in the table above are presenteci@timsolidated Statement of Income under net gkisses) from fair value adjustmer
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During the three and six months ended June 30, 28d52014, there were no transfers between Ley@shd 3.

The following table presents the quantitative infation about recurring Level 3 fair value of finelénstruments and the fair value measurementf
June 30, 2015:

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Municipals $ 7,89¢ Discounted cash flow Discount rate 4.0% (4.0%;
Trust Preferred Securitie $ 7,22¢ Discounted cash flown Discount rate 7.0 - 7.1% (7.1%;
Liabilities:
Junior subordinated debent. $ 29,47¢ Discounted cash flown Discount rate 7.0% (7.0%

The significant unobservable input used in the Ya@ilue measurement of the Company’s municipal $@esivalued under Level 3 is the securities’
effective yield. Significant increases or decreandhe effective yield in isolation would result & significantly lower or higher fair value measment.

The significant unobservable input used in the ¥alue measurement of the Company’s trust prefesesdrities valued under Level 3 is the securities’
effective yield. Significant increases or decreandhe effective yield in isolation would result & significantly lower or higher fair value measment.

The significant unobservable input used in the ¥alue measurement of the Companjinior subordinated debentures under Level 3féctve yield
Significant increases or decreases in the effegfiglel in isolation would result in a significantigwer or higher fair value measurement.

The following table presents the quantitative infation about recurring Level 3 fair value of finaiénstruments and the fair value measurementd as
December 31, 2014:

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Municipals $ 15,51¢ Discounted cash flow Discount rate 0.2% - 4.0% (2.3%,
Trust Preferred Securitie $ 7,09( Discounted cash flow Discount rate 7.0 - 7.25% (7.2%,
Liabilities:
Junior subordinated debent. $ 28,77 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 7.0% (7.0%;

The significant unobservable input used in the falue measurement of the Company’s municipal sieesivalued under Level 3 is the securities’
effective yield. Significant increases or decreasdhe effective yield in isolation would resutt & significantly lower or higher fair value measment.

The significant unobservable input used in the ¥alue measurement of the Company'’s trust prefesesdrities valued under Level 3 is the securities’
effective yield. Significant increases or decreasdhke effective yield in isolation would resutt & significantly lower or higher fair value measment.
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The significant unobservable input used in the Yailue measurement of the Companjunior subordinated debentures is effective yiSliginifican
increases or decreases in the effective yieldalai®n would result in a significantly lower orghier fair value measurement.

The following table sets forth the Company’s asseid liabilities that are carried at fair valueamonrecurring basis and the method that was us
determine their fair value, at June 30, 2015 anceb®er 31, 2014:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other

for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

(In thousands
Assets:

Loans held for sal $ - % - % - $ - % 30C $ - % 30C $ -
Impaired loan: 16,910 22,17¢ 16,917 22,17:
Other real estate own - - - - 4,25¢ 6,32¢ 4,25¢ 6,32¢
Total assets $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 21,467 $ 28,50 $ 21,467 $ 28,50(

The following table presents the quantitative infation about nomecurring Level 3 fair value of financial instrumerand the fair value measurem:
as of June 30, 2015:

Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Loans held for sale $ 30C Sales approach Adjustment to sales
comparison value to reconc
differences between
comparable sale 59.6% (59.6%
Loss severity discout
Impaired loan: $ 3,91C Income approac Capitalization ratt 7.3% to 8.0% (7.7%)
Loss severity discout 0.5% to 55.4%(15.7%
Impaired loans $ 5,587 Sales approach Adjustment to sales
comparison value to reconc
differences between
comparable sale -50.0% to  40.0%(-5.9%)
Loss severity discout 0.2% to 89.4%(13.2%
Impaired loans $ 7,41 Blended income and Adjustment to sales
sales approach comparison value to reconc
differences between
comparable sale -50.0% to  25.0%(-2.3%)
Capitalization ratt 56% to 11.0%(7.5%)
Loss severity discout 0.9% to 50.7%(16.3%
Other real estate ownt $ 15¢ Income approac Capitalization ratt 12.0% (12.0%
Loss severity discour 16.1% (16.1%
Other real estate owned $ 4,097 Sales approach Adjustment to sales

comparison value to reconc
differences between
comparable sale -41.5% to  25.0%(0.0%)
Loss severity discout 16% to 66.2%(18.5%
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The following table presents the quantitative imfation about nomecurring Level 3 fair value of financial instrumerand the fair value measurem:

as of December 31, 2014:

Assets:

Impaired loan:

Impaired loans

Impaired loans

Other real estate ownt

Other real estate owned

Other real estate owned

The Company carries its impaired collateral depahbiens at 85% of the appraised or internallynested value of the underlying property.

The Company did not have any liabilities that weaieried at fair value on a non-recurring basisuaeJ30, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average
(Dollars in thousands

6,981 Income approac Capitalization rate 73% to 85% (7.8%)

Loss severity discout 0.5% to 81L.7% (21.3%
6,93¢ Sales approach Adjustment to sales
comparison value to
reconcile differences

between comparable sa -415% to  40.0% (-2.2%)

Loss severity discout 1.8% to 89.4% (20.0%
8,25¢ Blended income and Adjustment to sales
sales approach comparison value to
reconcile differences

between comparable sal -55.0% to 25.0% (-6.1%)

Capitalization ratt 58% to 11.0% (8.0%)

Loss severity discout 0.9% to 74.4% (30.0%

4,76¢ Income approac Capitalization ratt 9.0 to 12.0% (9.1%)

Loss severity discout 0.9% to 4.9% (1.0%)
587 Sales approach Adjustment to sales
comparison value to
reconcile differences

between comparable sa -11.9% to  15.0% (-3.5%)

Loss severity discout 0.0% to 36.9% (9.6%)
971 Blended income and Adjustment to sales
sales approach comparison value to
reconcile differences

between comparable sal -25.04 to 0.0% (-8.9%)

Capitalization rate 75% to 8.0% (7.7%)

Loss severity discout 0.0% to 6.2% (3.0%)

The estimated fair value of each material claggnahcial instruments at June 30, 2015 and Decer®@beP014 and the related methods and assum

used to estimate fair value are as follows:

Cash and Due from Banks, Overnight Interest-EarningDeposits and Federal Funds Sold:

The fair values of financial instruments that grers-term or reprice frequently and have littlenorrisk are considered to have a fair value that

approximates carrying value (Level 1).

FHLB-NY stock:

The fair value is based upon the par value of tbekswhich equals its carrying value (Level 2).
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Securities:
The estimated fair values of securities are costhim Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financiatesteents. Fair value is based upon quoted m
prices (Level 1 input), where available. If a qubtearket price is not available, fair value is mstied using quoted market prices for similar s¢ieg
and adjusted for differences between the quotetiuiment and the instrument being valued (Level @uth When there is limited activity or le
transparency around inputs to the valuation, sgesrare valued using (Level 3 input).
Loans held for sale:
The fair value of non-performing loans held foresil estimated through bids received on the loadsas such, are classified as a Level 3 input.

Loans:

The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using the curratdsrat which similar loans would be mad
borrowers with similar credit ratings and remainingturities (Level 3 input).

For non-accruing loans, fair value is generallyneated by discounting managemenéstimate of future cash flows with a discoun¢ @mmensura
with the risk associated with such assets or fdlamyal dependent loans 85% of the appraised ternally estimated value of the property (Lev
input).

Due to Depositors:

The fair values of demand, passbook savings, NOWhay market deposits and escrow deposits are, fiyitdm, equal to the amount payable
demand at the reporting dates (i.e. their carryge) (Level 1). The fair value of fixemtaturity certificates of deposits are estimatedlizgounting th
expected future cash flows using the rates cuyerftered for deposits of similar remaining matiest(Level 2 input).

Borrowings:

The fair value of borrowings are estimated by disting the contractual cash flows using interetgan effect for borrowings with similar maturg
and collateral requirements (Level 2 input) or gsirmarket-standard model (Level 3 input).

Interest Rate Swaps:
The estimated fair value of interest rate swajmaiged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Other Real Estate Owned:

OREO are carried at fair value less selling coBte fair value is based on appraised value thr@ugbrrent appraisal, or sometimes through an iai
review, additionally adjusted by the estimated stastsell the property (Level 3 input).

Other Financial Instruments:

The fair values of commitments to sell, lend orrber are estimated using the fees currently chaogghid to enter into similar agreements, takirtg
account the remaining terms of the agreements l@ditesent creditworthiness of the counterpartiesnothe estimated cost to terminate ther
otherwise settle with the counterparties at theomépy date. For fixedate loan commitments to sell, lend or borrow, featues also consider 1
difference between current levels of interest rates committed rates (where applicable).

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the fdiregaof the above financial instruments approxinbterecorded amounts of the related fees
were not considered to be material.
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouautsi estimated fair values of selected financisfrimments based on the assumptions described
used by the Company in estimating fair value aeR®, 2015:

June 30, 201
Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 36,59¢ $ 36,59¢ $ 36,59¢ $ - $ -
Securities hel-to-maturity 7,22( 7,22( - - 7,22(
Mortgage-backed securities available for s 729,67 729,67 - 729,67 -
Other securities available for si 307,82: 307,82: - 292,69¢ 15,12¢
Loans 4,031,14. 4,078,11: - - 4,078,11:
FHLB-NY stock 49,92¢ 49,92¢ - 49,92¢ -
Interest rate sway 94 94 - 94 -
Total assets $ 5,162,470 $ 520945 $ 36,59¢ $ 1,072,39. $ 4,100,46:
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,698,333 3,785,531 $ 2,322,821 $ 1,462,70- $ -
Borrowings 1,115,43! 1,130,041 - 1,100,57! 29,47¢
Interest rate swag 1,711 1,711 - 1,711 -
Total liabilities $ 481547 $ 491728 $ 2,322,821 $ 2,564,98. $ 29,47¢
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouautsi estimated fair values of selected financisfrimments based on the assumptions described
used by the Company in estimating fair value ateébger 31, 2014:

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 34,26F $ 34,26 $ 34,26 $ - $ -
Mortgage-backed Securitie 704,93: 704,93( - 704,93; -
Other securitie 268,37 268,37" - 245,76¢ 22,60¢
Loans 3,810,37: 3,871,08 - - 3,871,08
FHLB-NY stock 46,92¢ 46,92¢ - 46,92¢ -
Interest rate swag 84 84 - 84 -
Total assets $ 4,864,951 $ 492567 $ 34,26 $ 997,70¢ $ 3,893,69
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,508,59¢ $ 3,524,120 $ 2,202,77' $ 1,321,34i $ =
Borrowings 1,056,49: 1,070,42 - 1,041,65 28,77
Interest rate sway 2,64¢ 2,64¢ - 2,64¢ -
Total liabilities $ 4567,73 $ 4,597,200 $ 2,202,770 $ 2,36565 $ 28,77

12. Derivative Financial Instruments

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Con'paeyivative financial instruments consist of et rate swaps. The Compasyhterest ra
swaps are used to mitigate the Comparexposure to rising interest rates on a portid8.( million) of its floating rate junior suborditeal debenture
that have a contractual value of $61.9 million. Aiddally, the Company at times may use interet swaps to mitigate the Compasyexposure 1
rising interest rates on its fixed rate loans.

At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2014, derivatitdsa combined notional amount of $36.3 millioene not designated as hedges. At June 30,
and December 31, 2014, derivatives with a combim&ibnal amount of $19.4 million and $14.5 millioespectively, were designated as fair v
hedges. Changes in the fair value of the derivativet designated as hedges are reflected in “Neetlgss from fair value adjustmentsi the
Consolidated Statements of Income. The portiorhefahanges in the fair value of the derivative giestied as a fair value hedge which is consic
ineffective are reflected in “Net gain/loss fronirfealue adjustments” in the Consolidated Statesientncome.
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The following table sets forth information regamglithe Company’s derivative financial instrumentsate 30, 2015:

Notional Net Carrying

Amount Valued
(In thousands
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) $ 36,32 $ (1,367)
Interest rate swaps (hedc¢ 4,087 94
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 15,30¢ (344
Total derivatives $ 55,71 $ (1,617%)

The following table sets forth information regamlithe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2014:

Notional Net Carrying

Amount Value®
(In thousands
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) $ 36,32 $ (2,239
Interest rate swaps (hedc¢ 4,131 84
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 10,34( (410
Total derivatives $ 50,79: $ (2,565)

(1) Derivatives in a net positive position are melgal as “Other assets” and derivatives in a neatiegposition are recorded as “Other liabilitiés'the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condit

The following table sets forth the effect of detiva instruments on the Consolidated Statemenisaaime for the periods indicated:

For the three months ended For the six months ended

June 30 June 30
(In thousands 2015 2014 2015 2014
Financial Derivatives
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) $ (2,125 $ (719 $ 871 $ (1,739
Interest rate swaps (hedge) (8) (33 (46) (61)
Net Gain (loss§! $ (2,139 $ (752 $ 82 $ (1,799

(1) Net gains and losses are recorded as pNet gain/loss from fair value adjustme” in the Consolidated Statements of Incc
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13. Income Taxes

Flushing Financial Corporation files consolidatemtiEral and combined New York State and New Yorl {Ditome tax returns with its subsidiaries, \
the exception of the Compasytrusts, which file separate Federal income taxms as trusts, and Flushing Preferred Funding@ation, which files
separate Federal income tax return as a real egtestment trust. Additionally, the Bank files Ndersey State tax returns.

Income tax provisions are summarized as follows:

For the three months For the six months
ended June 3( ended June 3(
(In thousands 2015 2014 2015 2014
Federal:
Current $ 11,15¢ 3% 567t % 14,067 $ 8,412
Deferred (3,999 (162) (2,660 1,85¢
Total federal tax provision 7,15¢ 5,51¢ 11,40: 10,27:
State and Loca
Current 4,14¢ 2,10z 4,85tk 3,36¢
Deferred (1,782) (17) (1,195 88¢€
Total state and local tax provision 2,36¢ 2,08t 3,66( 4,254
Total income tax provision $ 9,521 $ 7,59t $ 15,061 $ 14,52¢

The effective tax rate was 39.1% and 39.4% fortlinee months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, resggctind 39.0% and 39.8% for the six moi
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Theease in the effective tax rate was primarily du¢he prior year being affected by changes in
York State tax code passed on March 31, 2014, wdshlted in a reduction in the Companyleferred tax assets and a corresponding inchedag
expense during the three and six months ended3r014.

On April 13, 2015, the Governor of New York sigrnibe New York State 2015 budget, which included geanto the New York City tax code. 1

approved budget changes the manner in which thé&'Baax liability is calculated for New York City. Bad on our review of the changes to the
York City tax code, we do not anticipate a sigrfit change to the Company’s tax expense.

The effective rates differ from the statutory fealéncome tax rate as follows:

For the three months For the six months
ended June 3l ended June 3(

(dollars in thousands 2015 2014 2015 2014
Taxes at federal statutory rz $ 8,52¢ 35.(% % 6,74¢ 35.(% $ 13,52: 35.0%$ 12,777 35.(%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc

State and local income tax, net of Federal incaamédenefi 1,53¢ 6.3 1,35k 7.C 2,37¢ 6.2 2,76k 7.€

Other (547 (2.2) (50€) (2.€) (834 (2.2) (1,019 (2.€)

Taxes at effective rate $ 9,521 39.1%$ 7,59¢ 39.46$ 15,067 39.(% $ 14,52¢ 39.6%
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The Company has recorded a deferred tax assetOof $3llion at June 30, 2015, which is included'@ther assetsin the Consolidated Statement:
Financial Condition. This represents the anticipatet federal, state and local tax benefits expetiebe realized in future years upon the utilzatdi
the underlying tax attributes comprising this balnThe Company has reported taxable income faréddstate, and local tax purposes in each ¢
past three fiscal years. In management’s opinioryiéw of the Companyg’ previous, current and projected future earningsd; the probability th
some of the Company’$18.9 million deferred tax liability can be usedoffset a portion of the deferred tax asset, ali ws certain tax plannil
strategies, it is more likely than not that theededd tax asset will be fully realized. Accordingho valuation allowance was deemed necessanhé
deferred tax asset at June 30, 2015.

14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table sets forth the changes in aagdated other comprehensive income by componerthiéosix months ended June 30, 2015:
Unrealized Gain
and (Losses) on

Available for Sali
Defined Benefit

Securities Pension Item Total
(In thousands
Beginning balance, net of tax $ 339 $ (6,299 $ (2,907)
Other comprehensive income before reclassificatioesof tax (1,14%) - (1,14%)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmsive income, net of te (36) 332 29¢€
Net current period other comprehensive incomephtgx (1,187 332 (849)
Ending balance, net of tax $ 2,211 % (5,967 $ (3,756

The following table sets forth the changes in aagdated other comprehensive income by componerthiéosix months ended June 30, 2014:

Unrealized Gain

and (Losses) on

Available for Sali
Defined Benefit

Securities Pension Item Total
(In thousands
Beginning balance, net of tax $ (8,527) $ (2,857 $ (11,379
Other comprehensive income before reclassificatioasof tax 11,87: - 11,87:
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmstve income, net of te - 151 151
Net current period other comprehensive incomephtgx 11,87: 151 12,02«
Ending balance, net of tax $ 3,351 $ (2,709 $ 64¢
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The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified from accumulated other comprehensigerne by component for the three months ended

June 30, 2015:

Amounts Reclassified from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Incorr

Details about Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income Compone

Affected Line Item in the Statement
Where Net Income is Present

(Dollars in thousands

Unrealized gains on available for sale

securities $ 64 Net gain on sale of securiti
(28) Tax expense
$ 36 Net of tax
Amortization of defined benefit pension itel
Actuarial losse: $ (30€) (1) Other expens
Prior service credits 12 (1) Other expense
(299) Total before ta
13C Tax benefit
$ (164) Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income comnp®are included in the computation of net pedgainsion cost (See Note 10 of the N
to Consolidated Financial Stateme"Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F'.)

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisis@me by component for the three months ended

June 30, 2014:

Amounts Reclassified from
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Incomr

Details about Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income Compone

Affected Line Item in the Statement
Where Net Income is Present

(Dollars in thousands

Amortization of defined benefit pension itel

Actuarial losse: $ (175) (1) Other expens
Prior service credits 12 (1) Other expense
(169 Total before ta
72 Tax benefit
$ (91 Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income compoare included in the computation of net pedgainsion cost (See Note 10 of the N
to Consolidated Financial Stateme®Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F”.)
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The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisis@me by component for the six months ended
June 30, 2015:

Amounts Reclassified from
Details about Accumulated Other Accumulated Other Affected Line Item in the Statement
Comprehensive Income Compone Comprehensive Incorr Where Net Income is Present
(Dollars in thousands

Unrealized gains on available for sale secur $ 64 Net gain on sale of securiti
(28) Tax expense
$ 36 Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iten
Actuarial losse! $ (613)(1) Other expens
Prior service credits 23 (1) Other expense
(590 Total before ta
25¢ Tax benefit
$ (332 Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income compoare included in the computation of net pedgainsion cost (See Note 10 of the N
to Consolidated Financial Stateme®Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F”.)

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other compreherisis@me by component for the six months ended
June 30, 2014:

Amounts Reclassified from
Details about Accumulated Other Accumulated Other Affected Line Item in the Statement
Comprehensive Income Compone Comprehensive Incomr Where Net Income is Present
(Dollars in thousands

Amortization of defined benefit pension itel
Actuarial losse: $ (350) (1) Other expens
Prior service credits 23 (1) Other expense
(327) Total before ta
17€ Tax benefit
$ (152 Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income comnp®are included in the computation of net pedgainsion cost (See Note 10 of the N
to Consolidated Financial Stateme"Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit F'.)
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15. Regulatory Capital

Under current capital regulations, the Bank is nexgto comply with four separate capital adequsteydards. As of June 30, 2015, the Bank cont
to be categorized as “well-capitalized” under thengpt corrective action regulations and continwesxceed all regulatory capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Bank’s compg@with banking regulatory capital standards.

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Percent of Percent of
Amount Assets Amount Assets

(Dollars in thousands
Tier | (leverage) capita

Capital level $ 483,40 9.1% $  472,25: 9.62%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 264,74¢ 5.0C 245,25 5.0C

Excess 218,66: 4.1% 226,99 4.6:
Common Equity Tier | ris-based capita

Capital level $ 483,40 13.0% n/a n/a

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 240,32¢ 6.5(C n/a n/a

Excess 243,08: 6.57 n/a n/a
Tier 1 risk-based capita

Capital level $ 483,40 13.0% $ 472,25 13.8%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 295,78t 8.0C 204,34! 6.0C

Excess 187,62: 5.07 267,90t 7.81
Total risk-based capita

Capital level $ 506,49: 13.7% $ 497,34 14.6(%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 369,73: 10.0¢ 340,58¢ 10.0¢

Excess 136,75¢ 3.7C 156,75¢ 4.6(
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The Holding Company is subject to the same regglatapital requirements as the Bank. As of June2Ba5, the Holding Company continues tc
categorized as “well-capitalized” under the promptrective action regulations and continues to edadl regulatory capital requirements.

Set forth below is a summary of the Holding Compsuepmpliance with banking regulatory capital stares.

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Percent of Percent of
Amount Assets Amount Assets

(Dollars in thousands
Tier | (leverage) capita

Capital level $  478,65¢ 9.06% $ 471,23 9.62%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 264,29! 5.0C 244,96( 5.0C

Excess 214,36: 4.0¢ 226,27 4.62
Common Equity Tier | ris-based capita

Capital level $ 450,16 12.2(% n/a n/a

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 239,92 6.5(C n/a n/a

Excess 210,24: 5.7C n/a n/a
Tier 1 risk-based capita

Capital level $  478,65¢ 129% $ 471,23 13.81%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 295,29! 8.0C 203,87¢ 6.0C

Excess 183,36: 4.97 267,35! 7.81
Total risk-based capita

Capital level $ 501,74 135% $ 496,32 14.61%

Requirement to be well capitaliz: 369,11¢ 10.0( 339,79° 10.0(

Excess 132,62 3.5¢ 156,53: 4.61

16. New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Stand&aisrd (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpddreSU”) 2014-04 to clarify that when an
substance repossession or foreclosure occurs, editar is considered to have received physical ¢gsen of residential real esi
property collateralizing a consumer mortgage lagoun either (1) the creditor obtaining legal titbethe residential real estate property upon cotigpi

of a foreclosure or (2) the borrower conveyingimtiérest in the residential real estate propertthéocreditor to satisfy that loan through completof ¢
deed in lieu of foreclosure or through a similagdeagreement. Additionally, the amendments requiterim and annual disclosure of both (1)
amount of foreclosed residential real estate ptypeeld by the creditor and (2) the recorded inwvestt in consumer mortgage loans collateralize
residential real estate property that are in thecgss of foreclosure according to local requiresaritthe applicable jurisdiction. ASU 20134 is
effective for annual reporting periods beginninteaiDecember 15, 2014. Adoption of this update riitl have a material effect on the Company’
consolidated results of operations or financialditon.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2009-which provides new guidance that supersedesetrenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic
“Revenue Recognition"The guidance requires an entity to recognize rexdnudepict the transfer of promised goods or ses/to customers in
amount that reflects the consideration to whichadbmpany expects to be entitled in exchange fosdtgnods or services. This guidance is effectiv
interim and annual reporting periods beginningrallecember 15, 2017. We are currently evaluatirgithpact of adopting this new guidance on
consolidated results of operations and financiabdion.
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In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11 whichredsehe authoritative accounting guidance under ABgic 860 “Transfers and Servicingrhe
amendments require two accounting changes. Hirstatnendments change the accounting for repurd¢basaturity transactions to secured borrov
accounting. Second, for repurchase financing amamamts, the amendments require separate accoubtirg) transfer of a financial asset exec
contemporaneously with a repurchase agreement twghsame counterparty, which will result in secubedrowing accounting for the repurch
agreement. The amendments also require additioselodures regarding repurchase agreements. Thedmeats are effective for the first interin
annual period beginning after December 15, 2014ti€n are required to present changes in accogitintransactions outstanding on the effective
as a cumulativeffect adjustment to retained earnings as of ttginipéng of the period of adoption. Early adoptienpgrohibited. The amendme
regarding disclosures for certain transactions @actEd for as a sale are required to be presentadtésim and annual periods beginning after Decet
15, 2014, and the disclosure for repurchase agmesmeecurities lending transactions, and repussh@maturity transactions accounted for as sec
borrowings are required to be presented for anpegbds beginning after December 15, 2014, andnferim periods beginning after March 15, 2(
The disclosures are not required to be presentedofmparative periods before the effective dateogihn of this update did not have a material &
on the Company’s consolidated results of operatiofinancial condition. (See Note 8 of Notes to €alidated Financial StatementRépurchas
Agreements”.)

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-14 whichenads the authoritative accounting guidance und8C ATopic 310 “Receivables.The
amendments require that a mortgage loan be derzemband that a separate other receivable be rezjuopon foreclosure if the follow conditions
met: (1) the loan has a government guarantee shabti separable from the loan before foreclosi@gaf the time of foreclosure, the creditor has
intent to convey the real estate property to thergtor and make claim on the guarantee, and #ubtor has the ability to recover under that claint
(3) at the time of foreclosure, any amount of thane that is determined on the basis of the falugeof real estate is fixed. Upon foreclosure,
separate other receivable should be measured lmsé¢de amount of the loan balance (principal artdrést) expected to be recovered from
guarantor. The amendments are effective for anperadds, and interim periods within those annuaiqas, beginning after December 15, 2014. En
should adopt the amendments in this Update usihgred prospective transition method or a modifitdospective transition method. Adoption of
update did not have a material effect on the Corygasonsolidated results of operations or financi@tdition.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report should be read in conjunctiath the more detailed and comprehensive discesimcluded in our Annual Report on Form KO-
for the year ended December 31, 2014. In additiease read this section in conjunction with oum&adidated Financial Statements and Note
Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein.

As used in this Quarterly Report, the wo“we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiand its direc
and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, FlushingnBdthe “Bank”), Flushing Preferred Funding Corporation, Flushingr8ee Corporation, and FS
Properties Inc

" ou

Statements contained in this Quarterly Reportirgab plans, strategies, objectives, economicquerénce and trends, projections of results of $io
activities or investments and other statements d@natnot descriptions of historical facts may bevfirdlooking statements within the meaninc
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and $ecf1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Fwddooking information is inherently subject
risks and uncertainties and actual results couférdiaterially from those currently anticipatededio a number of factors, which include, but art
limited to, factors discussed elsewhere in this @uly Report and in other documents filed by ughwhe Securities and Exchange Commission
time to time, including, without limitation, our Amal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecerBhe2014. Forwardboking statements may
identified by terms such as “may,” “will,” “shoultficould,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “anticipges,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “foredss’
“potential” or “continue” or similar terms or theegative of these terms. Although we believe that eélkpectations reflected in the forwadodking
statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee fesults, levels of activity, performance or avkeiments. We have no obligation to update 1
forward-looking statements.

Executive Summary

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 19% Bank was organized in 1929 as a New YorkeSflaartered mutual savings bank. In 1¢
the Bank converted to a federally chartered muagings bank and changed its name from Flushingqh§aBank to Flushing Savings Bank, FSB.
Bank converted from a federally chartered mutuairggs bank to a federally chartered stock saviraggkton November 21, 1995, at which time Flus
Financial Corporation acquired all of the stocktleé Bank. On February 28, 2013, the Bank’s chawi&s changed to a fulervice New York Sta
chartered commercial bank, and its name was charg€Etlishing Bank. As a result of the Bank’s chaimgeharter to a fulservice New York Sta
chartered commercial bank, the Basrimary regulator became the New York State Diepamt of Financial Services (formerly, the New Y &tate
Banking Department), and its primary federal retprldbecame the Federal Deposit Insurance CorpordtieDIC”). Deposits are insured to 1
maximum allowable amount by the FDIC. Additionallge Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bgstem. The primary business of Flusl
Financial Corporation has been the operation ofthek. The Bank owns three subsidiaries: FlushirgfdPred Funding Corporation, Flushing Ser
Corporation, and FSB Properties Inc. The Bank afserates an internet branch, iGObanking.&oriThe activities of Flushing Financial Corporatior
primarily funded by dividends, if any, received rfriothe Bank, issuances of junior subordinated dabtl issuances of equity securities. Flus
Financial Corporation’s common stock is tradedtfmNASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol (GF

Our principal business is attracting retail demo$ibm the general public and investing those digpdsgether with funds generated from ongt
operations and borrowings, primarily in (1) origioas and purchases of muléimily residential loans, commercial business lpamsnmercial rei
estate mortgage loans and, to a lesser extentoefoer family loans (focusing on mixagse properties, which are properties that contath tesidentie
dwelling units and commercial units); (2) constiotioans, primarily for residential properties) @mall Business Administration (“SBA'pans an
other small business loans; (4) mortgage loan gates such as mortgage-backed securities; and.§)ddvernment securities, corporate fixedome
securities and other marketable securities. We algpnate certain other consumer loans includingrdraft lines of credit. Our results of operati
depend primarily on net interest income, whichhis tifference between the income earned on itsestearning assets and the cost of our interest
bearing liabilities. Net interest income is theulesf our interest rate margin, which is the diéfece between the average yield earned on inteegstn(
assets and the average cost of interest-bearibijties, adjusted for the difference in the averdmlance of interegarning assets as compared tc
average balance of interest-bearing liabilities. W& generate nonterest income from loan fees, service chargesigposit accounts, mortge
servicing fees, and other fees, income earned ok Bavned Life Insurance (“BOLI"), dividends on FedeHome Bank of New York (“FHLB-NYY)
stock and net gains and losses on sales of sesudtid loans. Our operating expenses consist pailhciof employee compensation and bene
occupancy and equipment costs, other general améhiadrative expenses and income tax expense. €uits of operations also can be significe
affected by our periodic provision for loan lossesl specific provision for losses on real estataenv
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Our strategy is to continue our focus on beingrestitution serving consumers, businesses, and goental units in our local markets. In furtherané
this objective, we intend to:

« continue our emphasis on the origination of mialtiily residential mortgage loans, commercial bes@loans and commercial real es
mortgage loans
- continue to transition the balance sheet to a foom@mercial-like’ banking institution;
« increase our commitment to the multi-cultural mgplece, with a particular focus on the Asian comityuim Queens;
e Mmaintain asset quality;
« manage deposit growth and maintain a low cost d$uhrough
= business banking depos
» personal account
= municipal deposits through government banking,
= new customer relationships via iGObanking.®;
« cross sell to lending and deposit customers;
. take advantage of market disruptions to attraentsind customers from competitors;
e manage interest rate risk and capital: and
e manage enterprise-wide risk.

There can be no assurance that we will be abléeotvely implement this strategy. Our strategygifject to change by the Board of Directors.

Our investment policy, which is approved by the Bloaf Directors, is designed primarily to manage ithiterest rate sensitivity of our overall asseid
liabilities, to generate a favorable return withowdurring undue interest rate risk and credit,riskcomplement our lending activities and to pdevan:
maintain liquidity. In establishing our investmestitategies, we consider our business and growdlesiies, the economic environment, our interes
risk exposure, our interest rate sensitivity “g@wsition, the types of securities to be held arteofactors. We classify our investment securisie
available for sale or held-to-maturity.

We carry a portion of our financial assets andrfaial liabilities at fair value and record changegheir fair value through earnings in norieres
income on our Consolidated Statements of Income Gomiprehensive Income. A description of the finaheissets and financial liabilities that
carried at fair value through earnings can be fanridote 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Fiiedrigtatements.

The second quarter of 2015 continued the trendngfraving credit quality, as we continued to seermmpments in non-performing assets. Non-
performing assets were $32.8 million at June 3@52@vhich was a decrease of $5.0 million, or 13.18m March 31, 2015. The decrease in non-
performing assets and our ability to minimize cleavffs has allowed us to record a benefit of $0.9iamlin our reserve for loan losses during the ¢
months ended June 30, 2015, which is the sixthemrie quarter of recording a benefit. Naccrual loans decreased $2.2 million, or 7.3%,rdutfhe
second quarter to $27.5 million, and are at tt@irelst level since the fourth quarter of 2008. Dyiime second quarter of 2015 we sold seven delirt
loans with a book value of $3.3 million, receivi$8.5 million upon sale. Net chargéfs for the three months ended June 30, 2015 $@® million. We
continued our practice of obtaining updated appfaiand recording chargdfs based on these current values as opposediingatb the allowance f
loan losses. This process has ensured that wekegigoace with changing values in the real estateket. The average loan-to-value ratio for our non-
performing loans collateralized by real estate #A8% at June 30, 2015.

Net loans increased $34.1 million, or 0.9%, dutimg second quarter of 2015. Loan originations amdhmses for the three months ended June 30
totaled $196.9 million. The quarter included theghase of loan participations of $14.8 million ienemercial business loans, at a yield of 2.89%
continued our focus on the origination and purclaigaulti-family real estate, commercial real estate and ceroial business loans as originations
purchases of these loan types accounted for 87fl#tecquarters originations. We also saw an improvement in tieéddyon loan originations as t
average rate of originations was 3.79% in the seaprarter of 2015, compared to 3.55% in the fitstrter of 2015. Loan applications in process
continued to remain strong, totaling $469.2 millatrnJune 30, 2015 compared to $317.3 million atdd&1, 2015.
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During the current quarter we completed the previouslyoanned move of our headquarters to RXR Plaza. Ewe office space allows us to brin
majority of our norbranch staff into one location providing efficieesiand synergies which were not available whersthi# was spread throught
many different locations. As part of the move wsoabpened a new fudlervice branch at the same location. Additionallysing the current quarter
sold three of our branch buildings in a sale leaskhransaction, realizing a gain on sale of $1gilfion, of which $6.5 million was recognized
earnings during the three months ended June 3@, &0d $6.2 million will be deferred and recognipe@r the term of the branch leases.

Our net interest margin for the second quarter@f52was 3.03%, a decrease of six basis points fhenfirst quarter of 2015. However, net inte
income increased $0.6 million to $38.1 million, qmared to the first quarter of 2015, due to the ghoiw interest earning assets. Excluding prepay
penalty income and additional interest collectesrfmonaccrual loans, the net interest margin decreasadbfasis points to 2.90% for the three mo
ended June 30, 2015 from 2.94% for the three maarided March 31, 2015.

At June 30, 2015, the Bank continues to be welltaiped under regulatory requirements, with TielCbmmon Equity Tier 1 Risk-based, Tier 1 Risk-
based and Total Ridiased capital ratios of 9.13%, 13.07%, 13.07% ahd(QRb, respectively. The Company is also subjedhéosame regulatc
requirements. At June 30, 2015, the Company’s abmtios for Tier 1, Common Equity Tier 1 Risk-bds Tier 1 Risk-based and Total Ris&se:
capital ratios were 9.06%, 12.20%, 12.97% and 28,58spectively.

COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE THREE MONTH S ENDED
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

General. Net income for the three months ended June 30, 2@E5$14.8 million, an increase of $3.1 million,26.9%, compared to $11.7 million
the three months ended June 30, 2014. Diluted reggrper common share were $0.51 for the three rm@rttled June 30, 2015, an increase of $0..
30.8%, from $0.39 for the three months ended Jine®14.

Return on average equity increased to 12.7% fotthttee months ended June 30, 2015 from 10.3% #thiee months ended June 30, 2014. Retu
average assets increased to 1.1% for the threehmentled June 30, 2015 from 1.0% for the three mscemided June 30, 2014.

Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income increased $0Iom, or 1.3%, to $50.2 million for the three mtbs ended June 30, 2015 fr
$49.6 million for the three months ended June 8242 The increase in interest income was primatisibutable to an increase of $454.9 million ie
average balance of interesirning assets to $5,033.7 million for the threentin® ended June 30, 2015 from $4,578.8 millionttier comparable pri
year period, partially offset by a decrease of 8divpoints in the yield of interesrning assets to 3.99% for the three months eduaieel 30, 2015 fro
4.33% in the comparable prior year period. The &lidpoint decline in the yield of interestrning assets was primarily due to a 45 basig pedtuctiot
in the yield of the loan portfolio to 4.43% for theee months ended June 30, 2015 from 4.88% &thitee months ended June 30, 2014, combine(
a 22 basis point decline in the yield on total siées to 2.46% for the three months ended June28@5 from 2.68% for the comparable prior
period. The yield of intere®arning assets was positively impacted by an isered $496.0 million in the average balance ofltoi@ns, net to $3,981
million for the three months ended June 30, 200 fi$3,485.9 million for the comparable prior yearipd and a decrease of $60.7 million in
average balance of the lower yielding total semgiportfolio to $992.0 million for the three mosténded June 30, 2015 from $1,052.7 million fo
comparable prior year period. The 45 basis poictetese in the yield of the loan portfolio was priityadue to the decline in the rates earned on
loan originations, existing loans modifying to lawates, and higher yielding loans prepaying. Edicig prepayment penalty income, the yield or
total loans, net, decreased 44 basis points td%4 8 the three months ended June 30, 2015 fro204 for the three months ended June 30, 2014
22 basis point decrease in the yield of the seaearportfolio was primarily due to the purchasenefnv securities at lower yields than the exis
portfolio.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $0.7 million, or 5.2%;12.1 million for the three months ended June2Ba5 from $12.7 million for tr
three months ended June 30, 2014. The decreasteirst expense was primarily due to a 17 basi#t peicrease in interebearing liabilities to 1.06
for the three months ended June 30, 2015 from 1.B8%he comparable prior year period. The 17 bpsisit decrease in the cost of interbsgring
liabilities was primarily attributable to decreasefs48 basis points and 28 basis points in the ofstertificates of deposit and borrowed ful
respectively. The decrease in the cost of certéeaf deposit and borrowed funds was primarily umaturing issuances being replaced at lowes.
These decreases were partially offset by increabdgl basis points and 25 basis points in the obshoney market accounts and savings accc
respectively, for the three months ended June @05 &om the comparable prior year period. The obstoney market accounts increased primarily
to our shifting Government NOW deposits to a momayket product which does not require us to proeialéateral, which will allow us to invest the
funds in higher yielding assets. The cost of sawviagcounts increased as we increased the rate yverpaome of our savings products to at
additional deposits. Additionally, the cost of irgstbearing liabilities was negatively affected by eases of $187.4 million and $66.9 million in
average balance of higher costing certificates egodit and borrowed funds, respectively, during ttiree months ended June 30, 2015, which
partially offset by an increase of $141.8 millianthe average balance of lower costing core depdsiting the three months ended June 30, 2C
$2,075.5 million from $1,933.7 million for the commable prior year period.

Net Interest Income. For the three months ended June 30, 2015, neesitercome was $38.1 million, an increase of $1ilBam, or 3.6%, from $36.
million for the three months ended June 30, 20%k ihcrease in net interest income was primartiybattable to an increase of $454.9 million in
average balance of interesrning assets to $5,033.7 million for the threentin® ended June 30, 2015 from $4,578.8 millionttier comparable pri
year period, partially offset by a 17 basis poietmase in the net interest spread to 2.93% fothitee months ended June 30, 2015 from 3.10% &
comparable prior year period. The yield on inteegsiing assets decreased 34 basis points to 3.80%d three months ended June 30, 2015
4.33% for the three months ended June 30, 2014¢winé cost of interediearing liabilities decreased 17 basis points @% for the three mont
ended June 30, 2015 from 1.23% for the comparatite pear period. The net interest margin declii®dbasis points to 3.03% for the three mo
ended June 30, 2015 from 3.22% for the three mastked June 30, 2014. The three months ended DYrgH385 included $0.1 million in additiol
interest collected from noaecrual loans compared to $0.4 million recordednduthe three months ended June 30, 2014. Excluttiisgadditione
interest collected from noaecrual loans, the net interest margin decreasdxhdig points to 3.02% for the three months ended 30, 2015 from 3.18
for the three months ended June 30, 2014. Furtkduding prepayment penalty income of $1.5 milliand $1.3 million recorded during the th
months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectihelynet interest margin decreased 17 basis pa@290% for the three months ended June 30,
compared to 3.07% for the three months ended Jon203.4.

Benefit for Loan Losses. The benefit for loan losses for the three montldedrlune 30, 2015 was $0.5 million, a decreas®.6fiillion, or 52.7% fror
a benefit of $1.1 million during the comparableopiyear period. The benefit recorded during theghmonths ended June 30, 2015 was primarily ¢
the continued improvement in credit conditions andimprovement in the impact of the qualitativetdéas used in the calculation of the allowance
loan losses. During the three months ended Jun@@®i®, nonaccrual loans decreased $2.2 million to $27.5 amillirom $29.6 million at March 3
2015 and net chargeffs continued to be minimal at $0.5 million, ovdibasis points of average loans, for the threetihsoended June 30, 2015. -
current average loan-to-value ratio for our mpamforming loans collateralized by real estate Wwa$% at June 30, 2015. When we have obti
properties through foreclosure, we have been abtpiickly sell the properties at amounts that apipnate book value. The Bank continues to mair
conservative underwriting standards. We anticiplaa we will continue to see low loss content im [man portfolio. As a result of the quarterly ays¢
of the allowance for loans losses, a reductiorhedllowance was warranted, and as such, the Conrpaarded a benefit of $0.5 million for the tt
months ended June 30, 2015. See “~ALLOWANCE FOR NJAOSSES.”

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income for the three months ended Jun€@I5 was $9.9 million, an increase of $8.0 million 400.9% from $2
million for the three months ended June 30, 20h& ificrease in noimterest income was primarily due to increasestob $nillion in net gains on st
of buildings and $1.2 million in net gains fromrfaalue adjustments, as the current period inclutetdyains from fair value adjustments of $0.8 o
compared to net losses from fair value adjustmeh$9.4 million recorded in the comparable prioayperiod.

Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense was $24.2 million for the threentin® ended June 30, 2015, an increase of $3.6omillir 17.6%, frot
$20.6 million for the three months ended June 81042 The increase in nanterest expense was primarily due to an increasl & million in othe
operating expense and an increase of $1.2 milliorsalaries and benefits, primarily due to increasesstaffing in the lending, technoloy
risk/compliance and retail departments, as wetlragcrease in restricted stock expense. The iser@eaother operating expense was primarily dubd
three months ended June 30, 2015 including a wdten of $0.8 million on one OREO to reduce theyiag value of the property to its anticipated
selling price, $0.4 million in expenses relatedhte move of our corporate headquarters and $0I&mih expenses related to the growth of the B
The current period also included an increase of #dllion in occupancy and equipment primarily doéncreases in rent expense of $0.4 million fon
new corporate headquarters and new branch at the kecation and $0.3 million from additional spaceManhattan for Business Bankers and a
branch location, which we expect to open in thedtiguarter of 2015. The efficiency ratio increased7.5% for the three months ended June 30,
from 52.9% for the three months ended June 30, Afidarily due to the increased expenses discusisede.
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Income before Income Taxes. Income before the provision for income taxes inseela$5.1 million, or 26.3%, to $24.4 million foretlthree montt
ended June 30, 2015 from $19.3 million for the ¢hmeonths ended June 30, 2014 for the reasons destabove.

Provision for Income Taxes. Income tax expense increased $1.9 million, or 25.8749.5 million for the three months ended Ju@e2®15 from $7.
million for the three months ended June 30, 201#narily due to the increase in income before inedlaxes as discussed above. The effective ta
was 39.1% and 39.4% for the three months ended3yr2015 and 2014, respectively.

COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

General. Net income for the six months ended June 30, 2045 $23.6 million, an increase of $1.6 million, 02%, compared to $22.0 million for |
six months ended June 30, 2014. Diluted earningg@@mon share were $0.80 for the six months eddeé 30, 2015, an increase of $0.07, or €
from $0.73 for the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Return on average equity increased to 10.2% forsthenonths ended June 30, 2015, from 9.9% forstkemonths ended June 30, 2014. Retur
average assets was 0.9% for the six months enaed3Dy 2015 and 2014.

Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income increased $Jillom, or 1.0%, to $99.8 million for the six morgfended June 30, 2015 from $¢
million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. iflweease in interest income was primarily attrailé to an increase of $415.6 million in the ave
balance of interestarning assets to $4,948.1 million for the six rherended June 30, 2015 from $4,532.6 million feracbmparable prior year peri
partially offset by a decrease of 33 basis pointthe yield of interestarning assets to 4.03% for the six months ended 30, 2015 from 4.36% in t
comparable prior year period. The 33 basis poiotide in the yield of interestarning assets was primarily due to a 44 basig pedtuction in the yiel
of the loan portfolio to 4.48% for the six monthwled June 30, 2015 from 4.92% for the six montliedrune 30, 2014, combined with a 24 basis
decline in the yield on total securities to 2.4686 the six months ended June 30, 2015 from 2.709%thf> comparable prior year period. The yiel
interestearning assets was positively impacted by an isered $476.3 million in the average balance ofl tiotans, net to $3,915.2 million for the th
months ended June 30, 2015 from $3,438.9 milliortlie comparable prior year period and a decrea$&®1 million in the average balance of
lower yielding total securities portfolio to $981ndllion for the three months ended June 30, 20dEf$1,046.4 million for the comparable prior
period. The 44 basis point decrease in the yielth@loan portfolio was primarily due to the deelin the rates earned on new loan originationstiex
loans modifying to lower rates, and higher yieldiogns prepaying. Excluding prepayment penalty imepthe yield on total loans, net, decrease
basis points to 4.34% for the six months ended 30015 from 4.77% for the six months ended BMe014. The 24 basis point decrease in the
of the securities portfolio was primarily due te thurchase of new securities at lower yields tharekisting portfolio.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $1.4 million, or 5.6%24.1 million for the six months ended June 3, 2from $25.5 million for the s
months ended June 30, 2014. The decrease in inex@snse was primarily due to a 16 basis pointedese in interediearing liabilities to 1.08% for tl
six months ended June 30, 2015 from 1.24% for ¢timeparable prior year period. The 16 basis pointetese in the cost of interdsearing liabilities we
primarily attributable to decreases of 45 basisgoand 27 basis points in the cost of certificatkgleposit and borrowed funds, respectively.
decrease in the cost of certificates of depositlardowed funds was primarily due to maturing is&es being replaced at lower rates. These dec
were partially offset by increases of 12 basis fgoand 23 basis points in the cost of money makebunts and savings accounts, respectively, &
six months ended June 30, 2015 from the comparnaide year period. The cost of money market accoumtreased primarily due to our shift
Government NOW deposits to a money market prodiithwvdoes not require us to provide collateral,clihwill allow us to invest these funds in hig
yielding assets. The cost of savings accounts &se as we increased the rate we pay on some &fawings products to attract additional depc
Additionally, the cost of interedtearing liabilities was negatively affected by e&ses of $187.7 million and $52.5 million in theermage balance
higher costing certificates of deposit and borrovitends, respectively, during the six months endankeJ30, 2015, which was partially offset by
increase of $115.6 million in the average balanclwer costing core deposits during the six morghsled June 30, 2015 to $2,049.0 million f
$1,933.4 million for the comparable prior year pdri
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Net Interest Income. For the six months ended June 30, 2015, net intaresme was $75.7 million, an increase of $2.4liari| or 3.2%, from $73.
million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. irweease in net interest income was primarilyitaitable to an increase of $415.6 million in
average balance of interesarning assets to $4,948.1 million for the six rherended June 30, 2015 from $4,532.6 million ferdcbmparable prior ye
period, partially offset by a 17 basis point deseeén the net interest spread to 2.95% for themsixnths ended June 30, 2015 from 3.12% fo
comparable prior year period. The yield on integssining assets decreased 33 basis points to 4@3#tef six months ended June 30, 2015 from 4
for the six months ended June 30, 2014, while t®t of interesbearing liabilities decreased 16 basis points @%. for the six months ended June
2015 from 1.24% for the comparable prior year pkrithe net interest margin declined 18 basis pam&06% for the six months ended June 30,
from 3.24% for the six months ended June 30, 2&&¢h of the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 3wn2014 included $0.7 million in additiol
interest collected from non-accrual loans. Exclgdinis additional interest collected from nacerual loans, the net interest margin decreasdub$ii
points to 3.03% for the six months ended June 8Q5Zrom 3.20% for the six months ended June 3Q@42@urther excluding prepayment pen
income of $2.7 million and $2.6 million recordedridg the six months ended June 30, 2015 and 2@%spectively, the net interest margin decreast
basis points to 2.92% for the six months ended 30n2015, compared to 3.09% for the six monthedrldine 30, 2014.

Benefit for Loan Losses. The benefit for loan losses for the six months eéndlene 30, 2015 was $1.3 million, a decrease @f §idllion, or 43.5%, fror
a benefit of $2.2 million during the comparableopryear period. The benefit recorded during thensonths ended June 30, 2015 was primarily d
the continued improvement in credit conditions andimprovement in the impact of the qualitativetdéas used in the calculation of the allowance
loan losses. During the six months ended June @5, 2nonaccrual loans decreased $4.4 million to $27.5 amillirom $31.9 million at December !
2014 and net chargeffs continued to be minimal at $0.8 million, ofobasis points of average loans, for the six momthded June 30, 2015. -
current average loan-to-value ratio for our mpamforming loans collateralized by real estate Wwa$% at June 30, 2015. When we have obti
properties through foreclosure, we have been abtpiickly sell the properties at amounts that apipnate book value. The Bank continues to mair
conservative underwriting standards. We anticipaa we will continue to see low loss content im lman portfolio. As a result of the quarterly ared
of the allowance for loans losses, a reductiorhan dllowance was warranted, and as such, the Comeanorded a benefit of $1.3 million for the
months ended June 30, 2015. See ““ALLOWANCE FOR NJADSSES.”

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income for the six months ended June 805 2vas $11.9 million, an increase of $8.2 million221.3% from $3.
million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. iHteease in nomAterest income was primarily due to increases6ob $nillion in net gains on sale
buildings, as we sold and leased back our Brookianch buildings, and $1.2 million in net gainsnfrdair value adjustments, as the current pe
included net gains from fair value adjustments 8f2$million compared to net losses from fair vakgjustments of $1.0 million recorded in
comparable prior year period.

Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense was $50.2 million for the six rhergnded June 30, 2015, an increase of $7.5 mibioh7.5%, from $42
million for the six months ended June 30, 2014. Foeease in noikterest expense was primarily due to an incred$d @ million in other operatir
expense and an increase of $3.3 million in salaies benefits, primarily due to increases in staffin the lending, technology, risk/compliance
retail departments, as well as an increase inicesir stock expense. The increase in other operaipense was primarily due to the current pe
including a net loss of $0.6 million from the saieOREO, $0.3 million in ATM fraud losses recordiedthe first quarter of 2015, $0.4 million
expenses related to the move of our corporate heeatdys and $0.5 million in expenses related togitwevth of the Bank. The current period ¢
included an increase of $1.4 million in occupaney aquipment primarily due to $0.2 million recordedhe first quarter of 2015 for temporary staft
additional security to guard against further ATMUd losses and increases in rent expense of $Ui®mior our new corporate headquarters and
branch at the same location and $0.3 million frafditonal space in Manhattan for Business Bankars @ new branch location, which we expet
open in the third quarter of 2015. During the cotrperiod the Bank also experienced increases @f fllion, $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $C
million in professional services, FDIC insuranc@ense, data processing expense and depreciatioanamidization, respectively, due to the growt
the Bank. The efficiency ratio increased to 61.2%the six months ended June 30, 2015 from 54. 7 six months ended June 30, 2014, prim
due to the increased expenses discussed above.
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Income before Income Taxes. Income before the provision for income taxes inseea$2.1 million, or 5.8%, to $38.6 million for teix months ende
June 30, 2015 from $36.5 million for the six mongimsled June 30, 2014 for the reasons discusse@.abov

Provision for Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes for the six monthged June 30, 2015 was $15.1 million, an incred$9 & million, o
3.7%, from $14.5 million for the comparable prigray period. The increase was primarily due to arese of $2.1 million in income before incc
taxes, partially offset by a decrease in the eiffectax rate to 39.0% for the six months ended BMhe2015 from 39.8% for the six months ended
30, 2014. The decrease in the effective tax rate pranarily due to the prior year being affecteddbynges in New York State tax code passed or
30, 2014, which resulted in a reduction in the Canys deferred tax assets and a corresponding incieda® expense during the six months er
June 30, 2014.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets. Total assets at June 30, 2015 were $5,360.0 millinrincrease of $283.0 million, or 5.6%, from $&,® million at December 31, 2014. Total
loans, net increased $222.8 million, or 5.9%, dytime six months ended June 30, 2015 to $4,008libmirom $3,785.3 million at December 31, 2C
Loan originations and purchases were $503.4 mifiarthe six months ended June 30, 2015, an ineref$114.2 million from $389.2 million for t
six months ended June 30, 2014. During the six hwoehded June 30, 2015, we continued to focus @mtigination and purchase of mukimily
residential, commercial real estate and commehtiainess loans with a full relationship. Loan aggtions in process have remained strong, tot
$469.2 million at June 30, 2015 compared to $2&%lBon at December 31, 2014.

The following table shows loan originations andghases for the periods indicated:

For the three montt For the six month
ended June 3( ended June 3(

(In thousands 2015 2014 2015 2014
Multi-family residentia® $ 50,42¢ $ 107,190 $ 177,17* $  165,00¢
Commercial real esta(® 57,33: 18,20t 143,72t 31,62:
One-to-four family — mixec-use property 9,91¢ 8,42¢ 24,897 18,42¢
One-to-four family — residential 8,97¢ 6,40¢ 22,07¢ 15,50+«
Cc-operative apartmen 45C - 45C -
Constructior 84kt 30C 1,387 997
Small Business Administratic 5,23¢ 22t 6,481 57¢
Taxi Medallion® - 1,88¢ - 13,53¢
Commercial business and otf®r 63,70¢ 48,54: 127,21: 143,49t

Total $ 196,88 $ 191,19: $ 503,40¢ $ 389,17:

(1) Includes purchases of $99.9 million for the six therended June 30, 20:

(2) Includes purchases of $11.0 million for the six therended June 30, 20.

(3) Includes purchases of $1.9 million and $13.5 millfor the three and six months ended June 30, 28%pectively

(4) Includes purchases of $14.8 million and $2.Dioni for the three months ended June 30, 201528d}, respectively. Includes purchases of $15.2
million and $30.7 million for the six months endashe 30, 2015 and 2014, respectiv
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The Bank continues to maintain conservative undéngrstandards that include, among other thingkaa-tovalue ratio of 75% or less and a ¢
coverage ratio of at least 125%. Multi-family remitial, commercial real estate and one-to-four lammixed-use property mortgage loans origin:
during the second quarter of 2015 had an averagetlmvalue ratio of 44.9% and an average debtregeeratio of 221%.

The Bank’s non-performing assets totaled $32.8onilat June 30, 2015, a decrease of $7.7 milliomf$40.5 million at December 31, 2014. Total non-
performing assets as a percentage of total assstsW61% at June 30, 2014 compared to 0.80% atriteer 31, 2014. The ratio of allowance for |
losses to total non-performing loans was 80.8% wateJ30, 2015 compared to 73.4% at December 31,.2884 — TROUBLED DEBT
RESTRUCUTURED AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS.”

During the six months ended June 30, 2015, mortgag&ed securities increased $24.7 million, or 3.586$729.7 million from $704.9 million
December 31, 2014. The increase in mortgaaeked securities during the six months ended 30ne015 was primarily due to purchases of $
million in mortgagebacked securities at an average yield of 2.64%chvhias partially offset by principal repaymentss62.8 million and a decrease
$0.3 million in the fair value of mortgage-backedsrities.

During the six months ended June 30, 2015, othauriies, including securities held-toaturity, increased $46.7 million, or 17.4%, to $3Lmillion
from $268.4 million at December 31, 2014. The iase=in other securities during the six months erddieé 30, 2015 was primarily due to purchas
$83.9 million at an average yield of 2.93%, whichswpartially offset by sales, maturities and a elese in the fair value of other securities tota$@g.(
million, $9.0 million, and $1.6 million, respectiye Other securities primarily consist of secustissued by mutual or bond funds that inve:
government and government agency securities, nmpalibonds, collateralized loan obligations and ooate bonds.

Liabilities. Total liabilities were $4,897.8 million at June W15, an increase of $277.1 million, or 6.0%, fr$#620.8 million at December 31, 20
During the six months ended June 30, 2015, duepositors increased $181.5 million, or 5.2%, t®%3,4 million, due to increases of $111.8 millio
core deposits and $69.7 million in certificatesdeposit. The increase in core deposits was duadeases of $108.9 million, $2.8 million and ¢
million in money market, savings, and demand actguespectively, partially offset by a decreas&b®b million in NOW accounts. Borrowed fut
increased $58.9 million during the six months endiene 30, 2015. The increase in borrowed fundspriegarily due to the addition of $73.0 million
long-term borrowing at an average cost of 1.29%aneét increase in shadrm borrowings totaling $35.0 million at an avezamst of 0.34%, partial
offset by the maturity of $50.0 million in long-terborrowings at an average cost of 0.64%.

Equity. Total stockholdersequity increased $5.9 million, or 1.3%, to $462.1liam at June 30, 2015 from $456.2 million at Dedwer 31, 201:
Stockholders’equity increased primarily due to net income of .$2@iillion, and an increase in additional paid apital of $1.9 million due to tl
issuance of 132,242 shares distributed to the tpsbfiring plan and defined contribution retiremplain during the six months ended June 30, :
These increases were partially offset by the puehd 635,199 treasury shares totaling $12.4 milltbe declaration and payment of dividends ol
Companys common stock of $0.32 per common share totalthg #illion and a decrease in comprehensive incofri®.8 million primarily due to
decrease in the fair value of the securities pbotf@dook value per common share was $15.98 at Ane2015 compared to $15.52 at Decembe
2014.

Cash flow. During the six months ended June 30, 2015, fundsiged by the Company's operating activities amedirio $23.5 million. These fun
combined with $224.9 million provided from finangimctivities were utilized to fund net investingieities of $246.0 million. The Company's prim
business objective is the origination and purchidsaulti-family residential loans, commercial business loamd commercial real estate mortgage |
and to a lesser extent one-to-four family (inclydimixeduse properties) and SBA loans. During the six meetided June 30, 2015, the net total of
originations and purchases less loan repaymentsaled was $201.5 million. During the six monthdezhJune 30, 2015, the Company also purcl
$141.2 million in securities available for sale.ridg the six months ended June 30, 2015, funds wereided by net increases of $189.2 million
$35.0 million in total deposits and short-term lbared funds, respectively, and $73.0 million in ldegn borrowings. Additionally, funds were provic
by $87.3 million in proceeds from maturities, saleslls and prepayments of securities and $20.Bomiln proceeds from the sale of buildings.

Company also used funds of $50.0 million, $9.4 iolland $13.5 million for the repayment of loregm borrowed funds, dividend payments
purchases of treasury stock, respectively, dutiegsix months ended June 30, 2015.
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INTEREST RATE RISK

The Consolidated Statements of Financial Positerelbeen prepared in accordance with generallypted@ccounting principles in the United State
America, which require the measurement of finanp@dition and operating results in terms of his@rdollars without considering the changes in
value of certain investments due to changes irrésterates. Generally, the fair value of finandmlestments such as loans and securities fluct
inversely with changes in interest rates. As altesicreases in interest rates could result inre@ges in the fair value of the Company’s inteeasting
assets which could adversely affect the Comparegsits of operations if such assets were soldnahe case of securities classified as availabte-f
sale, decreases in the Company’s stockholderstyedsuch securities were retained.

The Company manages the mix of interest-earningtassd interedtearing liabilities on a continuous basis to maxemnieturn and adjust its expos
to interest rate risk. On a quarterly basis, mamaage prepares the “Earnings and Economic Exposu@hanges in Interest Rategport for review b
the Board of Directors, as summarized below. Thort quantifies the potential changes in net @geincome and net portfolio value should inte
rates go up or down (shocked) 200 basis pointsinsisg the yield curves of the rate shocks will lzgatiel to each other. The Compasiyegulator
currently place focus on the net portfolio valusgfsing on a rate shock up or down of 200 basistpoNet portfolio value is defined as the fairueab
assets net of the fair value of liabilities. The faalue of assets and liabilities is determinethgsa discounted cash flow calculation. The netfpbo
value ratio is the ratio of the net portfolio valieethe fair value of assets. All changes in incand value are measured as percentage changeshi
projected net interest income and net portfoliaigat the base interest rate scenario. The bameshtrate scenario assumes interest rates at3d,
2015. Various estimates regarding prepayment assomspare made at each level of rate shock. Howewrepayment penalty income is excluded 1
this analysis. Actual results could differ sign#itly from these estimates. At June 30, 2015, thmgany was within the guidelines set forth by
Board of Directors for each interest rate level.

The following table presents the Company'’s interatt shock as of June 30, 2015:

Projected Percentage Changt
Net Interes  Net Portfolio  Net Portfolio

Change in Interest Ra Income Value Value Ratic

-200 Basis point -2.56% 9.62% 12.1(%

-100 Basis point 0.6: 7.3€ 12.0¢

Base interest raf 0.0C 0.0C 11.5C

+100 Basis point -5.1¢ -13.5¢ 10.2¢

+200 Basis point -10.8¢ -30.2¢ 8.5¢
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AVERAGE BALANCES

Net interest income represents the difference kewecome on intere-earning assets and expense on intdveating liabilities. Net interest incol
depends upon the relative amount of interest-egragsets and intereiséaring liabilities and the interest rate earnedaid on them. The following tat
sets forth certain information relating to the Camys Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditioth @onsolidated Statements of Income foi
three months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, ardtethe average yield on assets and average foeibities for the periods indicated. Such yig
and costs are derived by dividing income or expdrysthe average balance of assets or liabilitespectively, for the periods shown. Average bals
are derived from average daily balances. The yieldside amortization of fees which are consideadpistments to yields.

For the three months ended June

2015 2014
Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Mortgage loans, nd% $ 3,476,16. $ 39,73 451% $ 3,039,47 $ 38,33( 5.0%
Other loans, néd) 505,74! 4,34 3.44 446,45 4,15¢ 3.7¢
Total loans, net 3,981,90! 44,08 4.4% 3,485,93. 42,48¢ 4.8¢
Taxable securities
Mortgage-backed securitie 706,51( 4,34( 2.4¢€ 769,47 5,32( 2.71
Other securities 148,24+ 877 2.41 155,80: 1,742 2.3¢
Total securities 854,75: 5,227 2.4t 952,27! 6,23 2.6¢
Taxable securitied?)
Other securities 137,27( 87¢ 2.5¢€ 127,39¢ 82¢ 2.6(
Total tax-exempt securities 137,27( 87¢ 2.5¢ 127,39¢ 82¢ 2.6(
Interest-earning deposits and federal funds sc 59,76: 32 0.21 40,15¢ 18 0.1¢
Total interest-earning assets 5,033,69: 50,22: 3.9¢ 4,578,76 49,56¢ 4.3:
Other assets 275,76¢ 254,27
Total assets $ 5,309,46: $ 4,833,03
Liabilities and Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
Deposits:
Savings account $ 268,79: 291 04 $  258,65! 11€ 0.1¢
NOW accountt 1,475,57. 1,651 0.4t 1,458,61. 1,58¢ 0.4:
Money market accoun 331,11° 307 0.37 216,39: 12¢ 0.2t
Certificate of deposit accounts 1,340,45! 5,16¢ 1.5¢4 1,153,01! 5,81( 2.0z
Total due to depositol 3,415,93i 7,41¢ 0.87 3,086,67! 7,63¢ 0.9¢
Mortgagors' escrow accounts 62,90¢ 23 0.1¢F 57,21 32 0.2
Total deposit: 3,478,84. 7,431 0.8¢ 3,143,88! 7,67( 0.9¢
Borrowed funds 1,064,05! 4,64t 1.7 997,17: 5,07( 2.08
Total interest-bearing liabilities 4,542 ,89! 12,08: 1.0€ 4,141,06: 12,74( 1.2
Non interes-bearing deposit 242,73 202,80¢
Other liabilities 58,21« 37,03¢
Total liabilities 4,843,84! 4,380,90!
Equity 465,61¢ 452,12¢
Total liabilities and equity $ 5,309,46: $ 4,833,03
Net interest income / net interest rate spi $ 38,14( 2.97% $ 36,82¢ 3.1(%
Net interes-earning assets / net interest margin - $  490,79! 3.02% $ 437,70: 3.22%
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-bgari
liabilities 1.11X 1.11X

(1) Loan interest income includes loan fee income (Wincludes net amortization of deferred fees arslszdate charges, and prepayment penaltit
approximately $1.0 million and $1.1 million for thleree months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, resdgc
(2) Interest income on t-exempt securities does not include the tax benéflie ta-exempt securities
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The following table sets forth certain informatigtating to the Compang’Consolidated Statements of Financial Conditich@ansolidated Statemet
of Income for the six months ended June 30, 20862814, and reflects the average yield on assetsiegrage cost of liabilities for the periods
indicated. Such yields and costs are derived biglidig income or expense by the average balancesgfts or liabilities, respectively, for the periods
shown. Average balances are derived from averaifjetiddances. The yields include amortization affavhich are considered adjustments to yields.

For the six months ended June

2015 2014
Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Mortgage loans, ndb $ 3,417,700 $ 79,17: 463% $ 3,015,200 $ 76,91: 5.1%
Other loans, ndd) 497,47 8,441 3.3¢ 423,67¢ 7,691 3.6%
Total loans, net 3,915,18! 87,61¢ 4.4¢ 3,438,88! 84,60 4.92
Taxable securities
Mortgage-backed securitie 704,52( 8,721 2.4¢ 769,69: 10,71( 2.7¢
Other securities 139,14: 1,607 2.31 149,63¢ 1,76: 2.3€
Total taxable securities 843,66 10,32¢ 2.4k 919,33 12,47 2.71
Tax-exempt securitied?)
Other securities 137,62 1,76¢ 2.57 127,02 1,65:¢ 2.6
Total tax-exempt securities 137,62° 1,76¢€ 2.57 127,02: 1,65% 2.6(
Interest-earning deposits and federal funds sc 51,66¢ 53 0.21 47,31¢ 45 0.1¢
Total interest-earning assets 4,948,14. 99,76¢ 4.0z 4,532 ,55i 98,78( 4.3¢
Other assets 273,55} 253,04«
Total assets $ 5,221,69 $ 4,785,60:
Liabilities and Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
Deposits:
Savings account $ 267,50° 55E 041 $ 261,16: 23t 0.1¢
NOW accountt 1,463,571 3,201 0.44 1,465,271 3,27¢ 0.4t
Money market accoun 317,96: 56C 0.3t 206,97t 232 0.2
Certificate of deposit accounts 1,319,22! 10,53:¢ 1.6C 1,131,49. 11,59¢ 2.0t
Total due to depositol 3,368,27. 14,84¢ 0.8¢ 3,064,90 15,34 1.0C
Mortgagors' escrow accounts 55,41¢ 46 0.17 50,29 45 0.1¢
Total deposit: 3,423,68! 14,89¢ 0.87 3,115,201 15,38t¢ 0.9¢
Borrowed funds 1,043,10. 9,17¢ 1.7¢€ 990,55 10,07¢ 2.02
Total interest-bearing liabilities 4,466,79: 24,07: 1.0€ 4,105,75 25,46« 1.2¢
Non interes-bearing deposit 238,23 196,28!
Other liabilities 53,79t 37,25(
Total liabilities 4,758,82: 4,339,29:
Equity 462,87" 446,31(
Total liabilities and equity $ 5,221,69 $ 4,785,60:
Net interest income / net interest rate spi $ 75,69¢ 2.950% $ 73,31¢ 3.12%
Net interes-earning assets / net interest margin - $  481,35; 3.0606 $  426,80: 3.2%
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-bgari
liabilities 1.11X 1.1X

(1) Loan interest income includes loan fee income (Wimcludes net amortization of deferred fees arslszdate charges, and prepayment penaltit
approximately $1.7 million and $2.2 million for te&x months ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, resp8c!
(2) Interest income on t-exempt securities does not include the tax benéfhie ta-exempt securities
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LOANS

The following table sets forth the Company’s loaigimations (including the net effect of refinang)rand the changes in the Companpbrtfolio o
loans, including purchases, sales and principalagehs for the periods indicated.

For the six months ended June
(In thousands 2015 2014

Mortgage Loans

At beginning of perioc $ 332150 $ 3,028,45
Mortgage loans originate:
Multi-family residentia 77,28t¢ 165,00¢
Commercial real esta 132,75t 31,62:
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 24,89’ 18,42¢
One-to-four family — residentia 22,07¢ 15,50¢
Cao-operative apartmen 45C -
Constructior 1,38i 997
Total mortgage loans originat: 258,85! 231,55!¢
Mortgage loans purchase
Multi-family residentia 99,88¢ -
Commercial real estate 10,96¢ -
Total mortgage loans purchased 110,85 =
Less:
Principal and other reductiol 173,87: 171,02¢
Loans transferred to Available for S: 30C -
Sales 5,02¢ 5,94:
At end of period $ 351201 $ 3,083,03

Non-Mortgage Loans

At beginning of perioc $ 477,15. % 394,55t
Other loans originatet
Small Business Administratic 6,481 57¢
Commercial busines 110,44 111,52¢
Taxi medallion - -
Other 1,55( 1,32¢
Total other loans originated 118,47 113,43.
Other loans purchase
Taxi medallion - 13,53¢
Commercial business 15,21: 30,64
Total other loans purchased 15,21! 44,18:
Less:
Principal and other reductiol 104,96¢ 113,48
Sales - -
At end of period $ 505,87 $ 438,68
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TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCUTURED (“*TDR”) AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

Management continues to adhere to the Bank’s ceatee underwriting standards. The majority of Benk's nonperforming loans are collateraliz
by residential income producing properties that @eupied, thereby retaining more of their valud aaducing the potential loss. The Bank tak
proactive approach to managing delinquent loartdidiing conducting site examinations and encouabiorrowers to meet with a Bank represente
The Bank has been developing shert payment plans that enable certain borrowelsitg their loans current. The Bank reviews itBradpiencies o
a loan by loan basis and continually explores way®elp borrowers meet their obligations and retbem back to current status. At times, the Bani
restructure a loan to enable a borrower to continaking payments when it is deemed to be in thelbagterm interest of the Bank. This restruci
may include making concessions to the borrower tthetBank would not make in the normal course dfifess, such as reducing the interest rate
the next reset date, extending the amortizatioingehereby lowering the monthly payments, or cliagghe loan to interest only payments for a lid
time period. At times, certain problem loans haeerbrestructured by combining more than one ofetligdions. The Bank believes that restructt
these loans in this manner will allow certain bareos to become and remain current on their loahs.Bank classifies these loans as TDR. Loans \
have been current for six consecutive months atithe they are restructured as TDR remain on atstatus. Loans which were delinquent at the
they are restructured as a TDR are placed onacorsal status until they have made timely paymémtssix consecutive months. Loans that
restructured as TDR but are not performing in agaoce with the restructured terms are excluded tlenTDR table below, as they are placed on non.
accrual status and reported as non-performing loans

The following table shows loans classified as Th& tare performing according to their restructuezchs at the periods indicated:

June 30 March 31, December 31

(In thousands 2015 2015 2014
Accrual Status:
Multi-family residentia $ 2,651 $ 2,66¢ $ 3,03¢
Commercial real esta 2,35¢ 2,36¢ 2,37¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 2,35¢ 2,36¢ 2,381
One-to-four family - residentia 34¢ 351 354
Small business administratit 39 41 -
Commercial business and other 2,167 2,20¢ 2,24¢

Total performing troubled debt restructured $ 9,92¢ $ 10,00: $ 10,39:

During the six months ended June 30, 2015, oneifiamitly TDR loan of $0.4 million was transferred honperforming status, which resulted in 1
loan being included in non-performing loans.

Interest income on loans is recognized on the atdrasis. The accrual of income on loans is disnoatl when certain factors, such as contra
delinquency of 90 days or more, indicate reasondblet as to the timely collectability of such inve. Additionally, uncollected interest previot
recognized on non-accrual loans is reversed fraerést income at the time the loan is placed onawmual statud.oans in default 90 days or more
to their maturity date but not their payments, oure to accrue interest as long as the borrowetiraaes to remit monthly payments.
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The following table shows non-performing assetsluding loans held for sale, at the periods indidat

June 30 March 31, December 31
(In thousands 2015 2015 2014
Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing
Multi-family residentia $ - $ - 3 67€
Commercial real esta 41€ 758 82C
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 358 19t 40&
One-to-four family - residentia 13 13 14
Commercial business and other 31E 1,932 38¢€
Total 1,097 2,89: 2,301
Non-accrual loans:
Multi-family residentia 6,352 6,90z 6,87¢
Commercial real esta 2,69¢ 3,021 5,68¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 6,23¢ 7,22¢ 6,93¢
One-to-four family - residentia 11,32¢ 11,212 11,24«
Small business administrati 17C 232 -
Commercial business and other 67¢ 1,03¢ 1,143
Total 27,46 29,62¢ 31,89(
Total non-performing loans 28,55¢ 32,51¢ 34,19:
Other non-performing assets:
Real estate acquired through foreclosure 4,258 5,25: 6,32¢
Total 4,25¢ 5,252 6,32¢
Total non-performing assets $ 3281 $ 37,77 $ 40,517

Included in loans over 90 days past due and siilfidng were eight loans totaling $1.1 million, @ileans totaling $2.9 million and 10 loans total#y:
million at June 30, 2015, March 31, 2015 and Decangi, 2014, respectively. These loans are all {hest respective maturity dates and are
remitting payments. The Bank is actively workinghwihese borrowers to extend the maturity of oayethese loans.

Included in norperforming loans were two loans totaling $0.5 roilliat June 30, 2015 and March 31, 2015 which wes&ructured as TDR and |
performing in accordance with their restructuretht® compared to two loans totaling $2.4 milliorbacember 31, 2014.

The Bank’s norperforming assets totaled $32.8 million at June2Ba5, a decrease of $5.0 million from $37.8 millat March 31, 2015, and a decre
of $7.7 million from $40.5 million at December 3014. Total norperforming assets as a percentage of total assats W61% at June 30, 20
compared to 0.72% at March 31, 2015 and 0.80% eelDber 31, 2014. The ratio of allowance for losssés to total noperforming loans was 80.¢
at June 30, 2015, compared to 74.1% at March 3115 28d 73.4% at December 31, 2014.

During the three months ended June 30, 2015, Idsltataling $2.5 million were added to nacerual loans, seven loans totaling $0.6 milliorre

returned to performing status, seven loans totefibg million were paid in full, five loans totagirs1.5 million were sold, and one loan totaling2
million was transferred to other real estate owned.
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The following table shows our delinquent loans tir&t less than 90 days past due still accruingdsteand considered performing at the periods
indicated:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
60- 89 30-59 60- 89 30-59
days days days days
(In thousands

Multi-family residentia $ - % 7.28¢ $ 1,72¢  $ 7,721
Commercial real esta 417 862 1,34t 2,171
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 58¢€ 8,01¢ 1,15 10,40¢
One-to-four family - residentia 151 524 2,03¢ 1,751
Cc-operative apartmen - - - -
Construction loan - - - 3,00(
Small Business Administratic - 12¢€ - a0
Taxi medallion - - - -
Commercial business and other 46€ 5 1,58¢ 6
Total delinquent loans $ 1,62: $ 16,827 $ 7,85 $ 25,147

CRITICIZED AND CLASSIFIED ASSETS

Our policy is to review our assets, focusing prifigaon the loan portfolio, OREO and the investmeottfolios, to ensure that the credit qualit
maintained at the highest levels. When weaknessesdantified, immediate action is taken to corrée problem through direct contact with
borrower or issuer. We then monitor these assats, ia accordance with our policy and current ratprly guidelines, we designate them &pécia
Mention,” which is considered a “Criticized Asseshd “Substandard,” “Doubtful,” or “Loss” which awm®nsidered “Classified Assetsa5 deeme
necessary. These loan designations are updatededyaiVe designate an asset as Substandard wheellaefined weakness is identified t
jeopardizes the orderly liquidation of the debt. Wé&signate an asset as Doubtful when it displagsrtherent weakness of a Substandard asset w
added provision that collection of the debt in falh the basis of existing facts, is highly improlea We designate an asset as Loss if it is deahs
debtor is incapable of repayment. We do not holdlaans designated as loss, as loans that arendés@yas Loss are charged to the Allowance for
Losses. Assets that are nacerual are designated as Substandard or Doubtieldesignate an asset as Special Mention if thet as®s not warra
designation within one of the other categories, dngs contain a potential weakness that desereserchttention. Our total Criticized and Classi
assets were $60.1 million at June 30, 2015, a dseref $16.3 million from $76.5 million at DecemiBdr, 2014.
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The following table sets forth the Bank’s assetsigieated as Criticized and Classified at June 8052

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 3,85¢ $ 9,20¢ $ - % - $ 13,06:¢
Commercial real esta 2,697 3,347 - - 6,04¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 4,94¢ 10,86: - - 15,80
One-to-four family - residentia 997 13,31 - - 14,31(
Cc-operative apartmen - 612 - - 612
Construction loan - - - - -
Small Business Administratic 241 24:¢ - - 484
Commercial business and other 1,69( 3,87¢ - - 5,56¢
Total loans 14,42¢ 41,46 - - 55,89(
Other Real Estate Owned - 4,25¢ - - 4,25¢
Total $ 14,42¢  $ 45717 $ - 9 - 8 60,14¢

The following table sets forth the Bank's Criticizend Classified assets at December 31, 2014:

(In thousands Special Mentio  Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 6,49. $ 10,22¢ $ - % - $ 16,72(
Commercial real esta 5,45¢ 7,10C - - 12,55:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 5,25¢ 12,49¢ - - 17,75:
One-to-four family - residentia 2,352 13,05¢ - - 15,40¢
Cc-operative apartmen 622 - - - 622
Construction loan - - - - -
Small Business Administratic 47¢ - - - 47¢
Commercial business and other 2,841 3,77¢ - - 6,62(
Total loans 23,49¢ 46,66( - - 70,15¢
Other Real Estate Owned - 6,32¢ - - 6,32¢
Total $ 23,49¢ $ 52,98t $ - % - $ 76,48

On a quarterly basis all collateral dependent ldhatare classified as Substandard or Doubtfuirdesnally reviewed for impairment, based on upd
cash flows for income producing properties, or updandependent appraisals. The loan balancesllatexal dependent loans reviewed for impairr
are then compared to the loans updated fair vélleeconsider fair value of collateral dependent foembe 85% of the appraised or internally estia
value of the property. The balance which exceenlsvédue is generally chargeaff against the allowance for loan losses. At J88g2015, the curre
average loan-to-value ratio on our collateral dejeailoans reviewed for impairment was 47.0%.

We classify investment securities as Substandaehywbased on an internal review, collection of gigal is envisioned, but there may be a partiad
of interest or dividends. There were no securitlassified as Substandard at June 30, 2015 anchibere31, 2014.
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ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

We have established and maintain on our bookslawahce for loan losses that is designed to prosideserve against estimated losses inherent
overall loan portfolio. The allowance is establidhtbrough a provision for loan losses based on gemants evaluation of the risk inherent in
various components of the loan portfolio and otfeators, including historical loan loss experierfednich is updated quarterly), current econc
conditions, delinquency and non-accrual trendsssified loan levels, risk in the portfolio and vmlas and trends in loan types, recent trends ingehar
offs, changes in underwriting standards, experieab#ity and depth of our lenders, collection p@s and experience, internal loan review functac
other external factors. The Company segregatddatss into two portfolios based on year of origimat One portfolio was reviewed for loans origird
after December 31, 2009 and a second portfolioldans originated prior to January 1, 2010. Our sleni to segregate the portfolio based
origination dates was based on changes made inrml@rwriting standards during 2009. By the end@J2, all loans were being underwritten base
revised and tightened underwriting standards. Laaiginated prior to 2010 have a higher delinqueratg and loss history. Each of the years ir
portfolio for loans originated prior to 2010 havesieilar delinquency rate. The determination of #meount of the allowance for loan losses incl
estimates that are susceptible to significant ceardye to changes in appraisal values of collateedional and local economic conditions and ¢
factors. We review our loan portfolio by separaategories with similar risk and collateral charastes. Impaired loans are segregated and revi
separately. All noraccrual loans are classified as impaired. Impdibads secured by collateral are reviewed basederiair value of their collater:
For noneollateralized impaired loans, management estinatggecoveries that are anticipated for each Ibanonnection with the determination of
allowance, the fair value of collateral is gengradvaluated by our staff appraiser. On a quartbdgis, the estimated values of impaired colla
dependent loans are internally reviewed, basedpdated cash flows for income producing propertes] at times an updated independent appra
obtained. The loan balances of collateral depentfepaired loans are then compared to the propedypdated fair value. We consider fair valu
collateral dependent loans to be 85% of the apgdads internally estimated value of the propertiie halance which exceeds fair value is gene
chargedeff. When evaluating a loan for impairment, we dad rely on guarantees, and the amount of impairmgany, is based on the fair value of
collateral. We do not carry loans at a value inesscof the fair value due to a guarantee from émeolver. Impaired collateral dependent loans thext
written down resulted from quarterly reviews or afetl appraisals that indicated the propertistimated value had declined from when the loar
originated. The Board of Directors reviews and apps the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses quarterly basis.

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance for losses, we review our loan portfolio by separateegories which have similar risk and collat
characteristics, e.g., multi-family residentialpuoercial real estate, one-to-four family mixed-pseperty, one-to-four family residential, operative
apartment, construction, SBA, commercial busingss, medallion and consumer loans. General prongiare established against performing loa
our portfolio in amounts deemed prudent based orgoalitative analysis of the factors, including thistorical loss experience, delinquency trendi
local economic conditions. During the three morghded June 30, 2015, we incurred total net chafigesf $0.5 million, compared to net recoverie
$0.1 million for the comparable prior year peribthn-performing loans totaled $28.6 million and $45.8lion at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respecti
The Bank’s underwriting standards generally reqailean-tovalue ratio of no more than 75% at the time the lisaoriginated. At June 30, 2015,
average loan-to-value ratio for our nparforming loans collateralized by real estate Wa8%. A benefit for loan losses of $0.5 milliordesiL.1 millior
was recorded for the three months ended June 3@ 20d 2014, respectively. Management has conc|watetithe Board of Directors has concut
that at June 30, 2015, the allowance for loan kgses sufficient to absorb losses inherent in oan Iportfolio.
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The following table sets forth the activity in ti@mpany's allowance for loan losses for the periondgated:
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For the six months ended June

(Dollars in thousands 2015 2014
Balance at beginning of peric $ 25,09¢ $ 31,77¢
Provision (benefit) for loan loss: (2,250 (2,219
Loans charge-off:
Multi-family residentia (400 (679
Commercial real esta (32 (8€)
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert (472) (25¢€)
One-to-four family — residentia (249 (79
Small Business Administratic - (49
Commercial business and other (52 (125
Total loans charged-off (1,200 (1,27))
Recoveries
Multi-family residentia 214 141
Commercial real esta 68 382
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 47 13t
One-to-four family — residentia 74 165
Cao-operative apartmen - 7
Small Business Administratic 27 61
Commercial business and other 8 5C
Total recoveries 43¢ 941
Net charg-offs (762) (330
Balance at end of period $ 23,08 $ 29,23t
Ratio of net charc-offs during the period to average loans outstandiming the periot 0.04% 0.02%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross lodrend of perioc 0.571% 0.82%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to ~performing assets at end of per 70.3"% 62.02%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to ~performing loans at end of peri 80.8% 63.8%
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of the qualitative and quantigatiisclosures about market risk, see the informatioder the caption "Management's Discussior
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiems - Interest Rate Risk."

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company carried out, under the supervisionaitid the participation of the Comparsymanagement, including its Chief Executive Offiaec
Chief Financial Officer, an evaluation of the effeeness of the design and operation of the Coniadgigclosure controls and procedures (as defir
Rule 13a15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)fdake end of the period covered by this Quart&gport. Based upon that evaluation,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeoncluded that, as of June 30, 2015, the designoperation of these disclosure controls
procedures were effective. During the period coddrg this Quarterly Report, there have been no gbsrin the Compang’internal control ov
financial reporting that have materially affectedare reasonably likely to materially affect, thempany'’s internal control over financial reporting
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ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits. &dament of the Company, after consultation wittsioet legal counsel, believes that the resol
of these various matters will not result in any enall adverse effect on the Company's consolidfitethcial condition, results of operations and «
flows.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
There have been no material changes from the aisors disclosed in the Company’s Annual Repoffeam 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2014.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth information regamglithe shares of common stock repurchased by thep@wmynduring the three months ended Jun
2015:

Maximum
Total Number o Number of
Total Shares Purchast Shares That Ma
Number as Part of Publicl Yet Be Purchase
of Shares Average Price Announced Plan Under the Plan
Period Purchase! Paid per Shar or Program: or Program:
April 1 to April 30, 201E - 8 = - 492,88:
May 1 to May 31, 201. 317,70( 19.4:2 317,70( 175,18
June 1 to June 30, 2015 175,18: 19.6¢ 175,18 1,000,00!
Total 492,88: $ 19.5( 492,88:

During the three months ended June 30, 2015, thmp@ny completed the common stock repurchase progratwas approved by the Company’
Board of Directors on August 19, 2014 by repurah@2i92,884 shares of the Compangbmmon stock at an average cost of $19.50 pee.sba Jun
16, 2015, the Company announced the authorizatjothé Board of Directors of a new common stock repase program, which authorizes
purchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of its commueksAt June 30, 2015, 1,000,000 shares remair teepurchased under the current stock repur
program. Stock will be purchased under the curstotk repurchase program from time to time, in dpen market or through private transact
subject to market conditions and at the discretbthe management of the Company. There is no atpir or maximum dollar amount under -
authorization.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financiadrporation (1,
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |
3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorpton of Flushing Financial Corporation (
3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgrating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @anation (4)
3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated ag$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FinghFinancial Corporation (2
3.6 Amended and Restated -Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation (

Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@@eke Flushing Financial Corporation and Compunesirust Company N.A.,
as Rights Agent, which includes the form of Cettife of Increase of Shares Designated as Seriasiérarticipating Preferred
4.1 Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right Certificate asHibit B and the Summary of Rights to Purchase PrefeStock as Exhibit C (¢
Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingaietong-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ¢ecept of Flushing Financial
Corporation’'s total assets; therefore, copies n$titwent instruments defining the rights of thédeos of such debt are not included
as exhibits. Copies of instruments with respestich long-term debt will be furnished to the Sa@siand Exchange Commission

4.2 upon reques’
10.1 Flushing Bank Specified Officer Change in ContreV/&ance Policy (as Amended Effective July 28, 2@fi'ed herewith)
Employee Severance Compensation Plan for Vice dR¥ets and Assistant Vice Presidents of FlushingkBEffective as of July 28,
10.2 2015) (filed herewith
10.3 Employee Severance Compensation Plan of Flushimyg Bemended and Restated Effective as of July 852 (filed herewith
31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeil¢fl herewith)
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢d herewith)
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13S0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief
32.1 Executive Officer (furnished herewit
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief
32.2 Financial Officer (furnished herewitl

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed et
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuiniled herewith)
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunhéfiled herewith)
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documerie{fiherewith)
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doennffiled herewith
(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwihe Registration Statement on For-1 filed
September 1, 1995, Registration No-96488.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wikbrm ¢-K filed September 27, 200
(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwktorm £-8 filed May 31, 2002
(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwitorm 1(-Q for the quarter ende
September 30, 200
(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm &K filed September 11, 200
(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wigbrm 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causésl réport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Flushing Financial Corporatio

Dated: August 7, 2015 By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran
President and Chief Executive Offic

Dated: August 7, 2015 By: /s/David Fry
David Fry
Senior Executive Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Office
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ{abrporation (1
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |
3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation |
3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgvating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @anation (4)
35 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated aig$SArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FlnghFinancial Corporation (Z
3.6 Amended and Restated -Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation (
Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@@&eke Flushing Financial Corporation and Compugesirust Company N.A.,
as Rights Agent, which includes the form of Cettife of Increase of Shares Designated as Seriasiérarticipating Preferred
4.1 Stock as Exhibit A, form of Right Certificate asHibit B and the Summary of Rights to Purchase PrefeStock as Exhibit C (¢
Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingaietong-term debt. None of such debt exceeds ¢éecept of Flushing Financial
Corporation's total assets; therefore, copies n§titwent instruments defining the rights of thédeos of such debt are not included
as exhibits. Copies of instruments with respesiich long-term debt will be furnished to the Sa@siand Exchange Commission
4.2 upon reques
10.1 Flushing Bank Specified Officer Change in Contrel/&ance Policy (as Amended Effective July 28, 2@fi&d herewith)
Employee Severance Compensation Plan for Vice dets and Assistant Vice Presidents of FlushingkREifffective as of July 28,
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10.3 Employee Severance Compensation Plan of Flushimg Bemended and Restated Effective as of July 852 (filed herewith
31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeil¢fl herewith)
31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeilét herewith)
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief
32.1 Executive Officer (furnished herewit
Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13S0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief
32.2 Financial Officer (furnished herewit|
101.INS XBRL Instance Document (filed herewit
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (filed ttte)
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutniled herewith)
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunhéfiled herewith)
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documerieffiherewith)
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doennffiled herewith
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Exhibit 10.1

FLUSHING BANK
SPECIFIED OFFICER
CHANGE IN CONTROL SEVERANCE POLICY
(AS AMENDED EFFECTIVE JULY 28, 2015)

1. Term; Policy Effectiveness.

(a) This Policy shall apply to each employee atléhwel of Senior Vice President or above in goathding of Flushing Bank (tl
“Bank”) (and to each employee at the level of Assistant Yiesident or above in good standing of the Ban& whs a participant in this Policy as
effect immediately prior to July 28, 2015) who ist iparty to an employment agreement with the Bamk“Employee”)for the period that both (i) su
Employee is employed as such and (ii) this Policinieffect in accordance with Section 1(b) beloanfunctively, the “Term”)provided that if prior t
January 1, 2009 such Employee is party to a wrig@ecial Termination Agreement with the Compangntihe term (without renewal) of st
agreement shall continue in full force and effegtiluterminated in accordance with the terms themand the Term hereof, if applicable, for s
Employee shall commence immediately upon such tetitin; and provided further that, notwithstandihg provisions of Section 1(b), the Term s
continue for such Employee for a period of two gefatlowing a Change in Control (as defined in 8ec2(b) below) that otherwise occurs during
Term.

(b) This Policy, as amended effective July 28, 2Gall remain in effect through January 1, 20X6] auch effectiveness shall
automatically renewed for an additional one yeaiopeon January 1st, 2016 and on each succeedimgpdalst thereafter, unless the Board of Dire:
or any officer of the Bank, acting upon the auttyothereof, shall resolve to not renew the Polisyoé the next such January 1st; provided that
resolution is adopted prior to such anniversarye daid the participants under the Policy are notifi€ such nomenewal within 60 days after st
anniversary date.

(c) Upon the expiration of the Term, all rights,nbéts and obligations of Flushing Bank (the “Banl@nd Flushing Financi
Corporation (the “Holding Company”) hereunder shalminate.

(d) Notwithstanding anything in this Policy to tbentrary, the amendments to this Policy that beceffeetive July 28, 2015 shall r
apply to any employee who was covered by this Roicmediately prior to July 28, 2015 (the “Grandiiated Employees”)The rights of th
Grandfathered Employees shall continue to be geethy the terms of the Policy as in effect immealjaprior to July 28, 2015.




2. Definitions .

(a) “ Caus€ means the Employeg’(i) intentional engagement in dishonest conduetiliful misconduct, (ii) breach of fiduciary du
involving personal profit, (iii) insubordination dntentional failure to perform stated duties, (willful violation of the Banks rules and policies a
other applicable laws, rules, or regulations, (@hwdction (including entry of a guilty onolo contendereplea) of a felony or any crime involvi
dishonesty or moral turpitude, (vi) material breawhany provision of any Bank policy or employmesgreement with the Bank, or (vii) pe
performance.

(b) “ Change of Contrdl means:

(i) the acquisition of all or substantially all tife assets of the Bank or the Holding Company lyypemson or entity, or by a
persons or entities acting in concert;

(i) the occurrence of any event if, immediatelyYldwing such event, a majority of the members & Board of Directors |
the Bank or the Holding Company, as the case maymbef any successor corporation shall consispertons other than Curr
Members, respectively (for these purposes, a “@uidember’shall mean any member of the Board of DirectorthefBank or th
Holding Company as of the Commencement Date andsangessor of a Current Member whose nominatioalestion has bet
approved by a majority of the Current Members therthe respective Board of Directors);

(iii) the acquisition of beneficial ownership, dity or indirectly (as provided in Rule 1&lunder the Securities Exchange
of 1934 (the “Act”),or any successor rule), of 25% or more of the todahbined voting power of all classes of stockhef Bank or th
Holding Company by any person or group deemed sopeunder Section 13(d)(3) of the Act; or

(iv) approval by the stockholders of the Bank oe tHolding Company of an agreement providing for therger o
consolidation of the Bank or the Holding Companyhwanother corporation where the stockholders ef Blank or the Holdir
Company, immediately prior to the merger or cortadlon, would not beneficially own, directly or ingctly, immediately after tt
merger or consolidation, shares entitling suchldtoltlers to 50% or more of the total combined \@fiower of all classes of stock
the surviving corporation.

(c) “ Disability " means termination under circumstances in whictetih@loyee would qualify for disability benefits umdme or mor
disability programs maintained by the Holding Compar any subsidiary (including the Bank) employthg Employee.

(d) “ Good Reasofimeans:




(i) a reduction by the Holding Company or any sdiasy (including the Bank) in the Employsednnual base salary as
effect immediately prior to a Change of Control; or

(ii) the failure of the Holding Company or any sigary (including the Bank) to maintain the Empleig principal place ¢
employment within 50 miles as in effect immediatetior to a Change of Control.

3. Severance Benefit:.

In the event the Employex’employment with the Holding Company and any sfsiibsidiaries (including the Bank) is termini
within two years following a Change of Control Ifiy the Holding Company or any of its subsidiarie€l(ding the Bank) other than by reason of
death or Disability of the Employee and other tfenCause, or (ii) by the Employee for Good Reasba,Bank shall provide and pay to the Emplc
the following:

(a) the Employea earned but unpaid current salary as of the datrmination, plus an amount representing anywetibu
unpaid vacation time, which amounts shall be pattiwthirty days of termination;

(b) the benefits, if any, to which the Employeeeistitted as a former employee under the Holding gamy’s anc
subsidiaries’ (including the Bar® employee benefit plans and programs and compensplans and programs, which shall be pai
accordance with the terms of such plans and program

(c) continued health and welfare benefits (includingugr life, disability, medical and dental benefits),addition to the
provided in paragraph (b) above, to the extent ssag to provide coverage for the Employee formtmaber of months equal to the numbe
months of salary payable to the Employee pursumpatagraph (d) below (the “Severance Perio8Ul)ch benefits shall be provided through
purchase of insurance, and shall be equivalenhéohealth and welfare benefits (including cost-sigapercentagesprovided to activ
employees of the Bank (or any successor theredfpastime to time in effect during the Severanegi®d. Where the amount of such ben
is based on salary, they shall be provided to thelByee based on the highest annual rate of satdrieved by the Employee during the pe
of the Employees employment with the Bank or its subsidiariesthé Employee had dependent coverage in effecteatitiie of his or he
termination of employment, the Employee shall h&we right to elect to continue such dependent ageifor the Severance Period.
benefits to be provided under this paragraph (e}l slease to the extent that in the judgment ofBhak substantially equivalent benefits
provided to the Employee (and/or his/her depenfldntaa subsequent employer of the Employee, whi sedify a description thereof to t
Bank; and




(d) within thirty days following the Employeg'termination of employment, a cash lump sum payrmean amount equal
one months salary for each full year of continuous serviompleted with the Holding Company or any of its sdiaries (including the Bau
or any predecessor of the Bank), but in no evesst fean 12 months’ salary or more than 18 morghkiry, such salary to be the greater o
Employee’s salary immediately prior to the Chanfi€antrol or the Employee’s salary at the dateunfrstermination.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the benefits prodide the Employee under this Section 3 shall baiged if and to the extent that a nation
recognized firm of compensation consultants or tauslidesignated by the Holding Company or the Baetiermines that such reduction will result
greater net aftetax benefit to the Employee than the Employee waolblhin in the absence of such reduction, taking &Tcount any excise tax paye
by the Employee under Internal Revenue Code Sed888.

4, No Effect on Employee Benefit Plans or Compensatiofrograms.

Except as expressly provided in this Policy, thienteation of the Employes’employment, whether by the Holding Company or &
its subsidiaries (including the Bank) or by the Hoype, shall have no effect on the rights and aliéms of the parties hereto under the employeefii
plans or programs or compensation plans or progfarhether or not employee benefit plans or progjaimest the Holding Company or any subsid
(including the Bank) may maintain from time to time

5. No Right to Employment.

Nothing in this Policy shall be construed as givihg Employee the right to be retained in the emplent of the Holding Company
any of its subsidiaries (including the Bank), nbal§ it affect the right of the Holding Company any of its subsidiaries (including the Bank
terminate the Employee’s employment with or withcatise.

6. Regulatory Action .

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of thisiBplto the contrary, this Section 6 shall applyktimes, during the Term.

(b) If the Employee is suspended and/or temporarighibited from participating in the conduct oéthffairs of the Bank by a not
served under 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e)(3) and (g)(1)Btuek’s obligations to the Employee under this Policylldhesuspended as of the date of such se
unless stayed by appropriate proceedings. If thegds in such notice are dismissed, the Bank Ehalhy the Employee all of the compensation pag
under this Policy that was withheld while the Bankbligations under this Policy were so suspended,(ii) reinstate in whole any of its obligaticio
the Employee which were suspended.




(c) If the Employee is removed and/or permanentbhibited from participating in the conduct of tBank’s affairs by an order issu
under 12 U.S.C. § 1818(e)(4) or (g)(1), all obligas of the Bank to the Employee under this Podigll terminate as of the effective date of theeq
other than vested rights of the parties accrueaf asch effective date, which shall not be affected

(d) If the Bank is in default (as defined in senti®&(x)(1) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (tBBIA”)), all obligations of th
Bank under this Policy shall terminate as of theedd such default, but this Section 6(d) shall aiféct any vested rights of the Employee accrised!
such date of default.

(e) All obligations of the Bank under this Polidyadl be terminated, except to the extent it is aeieed that continuation of the Pol
is necessary to the continued operation of the Béyky the director of the Federal Deposit Inswoa Corporation (the “FDIC"pr his or her design
(“Director”) at the time the FDIC enters into an agreementawige assistance to or on behalf of the Bank uttteauthority contained in Section 1:
of the FDIA; or (ii) by the Director at the timeelDirector approves a supervisory merger to respteblems related to operation of the Bank or v
the Bank is determined by the Director to be iruagafe or unsound condition; provided, howevet, tiia Section 6(e) shall not affect any vestetits
of the Employee accrued as of such date of termimat

(f) All obligations under this Policy are furtheulgect to such conditions, restrictions, limitaoand forfeiture provisions as n
separately apply pursuant to any applicable stat&ihg laws.

(g) Notwithstanding any other provision of this ieglto the contrary, any payments made to the Eygagursuant to this Policy
otherwise are subject to and conditioned upon tteimpliance with 12 U.S.C. § 1828(k) and any retijutes promulgated thereunder.

7. Miscellaneous Provision:.

(a) SuccessorsThis Policy shall inure to the benefit of andidieding upon the Employee and his legal represeettand the Holdir
Company and the Bank, their successors and assighsding any successor by merger or consolidatioa statutory receiver or any other persc
firm or corporation to which all or substantiallly f the assets and business of the Holding Comparthe Bank may be sold or otherwise transferred.

(b) Waiver. The Waiver by any party of a breach of any priovioof this Policy shall not operate or be conafras a waiver of at
subsequent breach of this Policy.

(c) Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any prowisi of this Policy shall not affect the validity enforceability of an
other provision of this Policy, which shall rema&irfull force and effect.




(d) Headings and Reference$he headings of the sections of this Policy aseited for convenience only and shall not be dde
constitute a part of this Policy.

(e) Entire Policy. This Policy constitutes the entire policy, agreatmand understanding of the parties with resped¢hé mattel
contemplated herein, and supersedes all prioripsliagreements, arrangements and understandiagedréo the subject matter hereof.

(f) Amendment or TerminationThe Board of Directors of the Bank may amendeominate this Policy at any time prior to a Che
of Control. This Policy may not be amended or teatéd at any time after a Change of Control in mx@nner adverse to the Employee withou
consent of such Employee.

(g9) Governing Law. This Policy shall be governed by the laws of 8tate of New York, without reference to conflicts law
principles.

(h) Withholding. The Employee agrees that the Bank may withhalohfany payment required to be made to the Emplpyesuant t
this Policy all federal, state, local and/or otteetes which the Bank determines are required twitléheld in accordance with applicable statutes/an
regulations in effect from time to time.

8. Guarantee.

The Holding Company hereby agrees to guarantepaimment by the Bank of any benefits and compens#ébiavhich the Employee
entitled under this Policy.

9. Compliance with Code Section 4094

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3thié Employee is a specified employee within themireg of Section 409A of tl
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Sedl®A"), as determined by the Board in accordance with thetien made by the Bank 1
determining specified employees, any amounts payahtler sections 3(d) (and any other payments ichnthe Employee may be entitled) wk
constitute “deferred compensatiowithin the meaning of Section 409A and which arbeowise scheduled to be paid during the first sbnth:
following the Employees termination of employment (other than any paysi¢hat are permitted under Section 409A to be paitlin six month
following termination of employment of a specifiedhployee) shall be suspended until the six-monthivensary of the Employeg’termination ¢
employment (or the Employeedeath if sooner), at which time all payments thate suspended shall be paid to the Employeeigagdtate) in a lun
sum, together with interest on each suspended paya¢he prime rate (as reported in the Wall $tdeernal) from the date of suspension to the df
payment.

(b) A termination of employment shall not be deerndhave occurred for purposes of any provisiothes Policy providing for th
payment of any amounts or benefits upon or follgréntermination of employment unless such termmais also a “separation from servicealithin
the meaning of Code Section 409A).




(c) For purposes of Section 409A, each paymentusetions 3(d) will be treated as a separate paygme

(d) It is intended that this Policy comply with tpeovisions of Section 409A and the regulations guaidlance of general applicabil
issued thereunder so as to not subject the Employtree payment of additional interest and taxegenrSection 409A, and in furtherance of this in
this Policy shall be interpreted, operated and adhtgred in a manner consistent with these intastio




Exhibit 10.2
EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE COMPENSATION PLAN
FOR VICE PRESIDENTS AND ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENTS

OF
FLUSHING BANK

(Effective as of July 28, 2015)

1. PURPOSE. The purpose of tmpByee Severance Compensation Plan for Vice Rreidand Assistant Vice Presidents (the “Plastd
provide an equitable measure of compensation fgibé# employees of Flushing Bank (the “Bank”) dughing Financial Corporation (the “Holding
Company”) whose employment has been terminatedmwithe year after a Change of Control.

2. DEFINITIONS.

(@ “Cause” means intentional eragagnt in dishonest conduct, insubordination, wlilffisconduct, breach of fiduciary duty involving
personal profit, intentional failure to perform st or commission of an act which would constitfelony.

(b) “Change of Control” means:

0] the acquisition of all or stidstially all of the assets of the Bank or the HiaddCompany by any person or entity, or by any gessor
entities acting in concert;

(ii) the occurrence of any eventriimediately following such event, a majority oétmembers of the Board of Directors of the Banther
Holding Company or of any successor corporatior sbasist of persons other than Current Membessttfese purposes, a “Current Member” shall
mean any member of the Board of Directors of thekBar the Holding Company as of the Effective Daftéhe Conversion and any successor of a
Current Member whose nomination or election haslaggroved by a majority of the Current Membersitbe the Board of Directors);

(i) the acquisition of beneficial orship, directly or indirectly (as provided in RUl3d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834 (
“Act”), or any successor rule), of 25% or more lod total combined voting power of all classes otktof the Bank or the Holding Company by any
person or group deemed a person under Section(3B@f)the Act; or

(iv) approval by the stockholderstod Bank or the Holding Company of an agreementigioy for the merger or consolidation of the Bamk o
the Holding Company with another corporation whbeestockholders of the Bank or the Holding Compamynediately prior to the merger or
consolidation, would not beneficially own, directy indirectly, immediately after the merger or solidation, shares entitling such stockholders0&5
or more of the total combined voting power of ddsses of stock of the surviving corporation.



(c) “Disability’'means termination under circumstances in whiclethployee would qualify for disability benefits umame or more disabilit
programs maintained by the Holding Company or thakB

(d) “Good Reason” means (i) a retucby the Bank or the Holding Company in the ergplis Pay, as in effect immediately prior to a
Change of Control, or (ii) the failure of the BamkHolding Company to maintain the employee’s gpatplace of employment within 50 miles, as in
effect immediately prior to a Change of Control.

(e) “Pay” means the regular howvgge of an employee or, if the employee is salatlelannual base salary of the employee, as éuteff
immediately prior to a Change of Control, and doesinclude in either case overtime, bonuses, lbergbremium wage payments.

3. ELIGIBILITY. An employee shdik eligible to receive the severance payment itestin Section 4 of this Plan if:

(@) the employee was employed by the Bank or the Hgl@iampany immediately prior to a Change of Coratdhe level of Vice President
Assistant Vice President,

(b) the employee is not (i) a pagyan employment agreement nor a special termimagweement with the Bank or the Holding Company (i
or eligible to receive benefits under the Flusiamk Specified Officer Change in Control SeveraRokcy, on the date of termination of the
employee’s employment,

(c) the employee completed at least year of service with the Bank or the Holdirgr@any prior to termination of the employee’s
employment,

(d) the employee’s employment wamtrated within one year following a Change of Gohtand

(e) the employee’s employment veaminated (i) by the Bank or the Holding Compartyeotthan by reason of the death, or Disabilityhef t
employee and other than for Cause, or (ii) by theleyee for Good Reason.

4, BENEFITS.

(®) Employees eligible pursuanBaztion 3 shall be entitled to receive from the Barcash lump sum severance payment equal to onthmo

Pay for each full year of continuous service conguevith the Bank or the Holding Company or anydgaessor of the Bank, up to a maximum benefit
of 12 months of Pay, which shall be paid withirrtthdays of the Employee’s termination of employmen

(b) The severance payment descrélibede in paragraph (a) shall be payable in additipand not in lieu of, all other accrued or veste
earned but deferred compensation, rights, optiansther benefits which may be owed to the empldg#ewing termination.

2




(c) Employees eligible pursuanBextion 3 shall be entitled to receive from the lBamntinued health and welfare benefits (includingup

life, disability, medical and dental benefits) beetextent necessary to provide coverage for thel@rep for the number of months equal to the nunolp
months of Pay payable to the Employee pursuanataguaph (a) above (the “Severance Peridlich benefits shall be provided through the pureiad
insurance, and shall be equivalent to the healthwaeifare benefits (including cost-sharing percgatprovided to active employees of the Bank (or
successor thereof) as from time to time in effectrdy the Severance Period. Where the amount ¢f benefits is based on salary, they shall be pea
to the Employee based on the highest annual ratelafy achieved by the Employee during the pesfadtie Employee’s employment with the Bank or
its subsidiaries. If the Employee had dependentame in effect at the time of his or her termimaf employment, the Employee shall have the right
to elect to continue such dependent coverage &B#verance Period. The benefits to be providednihis paragraph (c) shall cease to the extenin
the judgment of the Bank substantially equivalesridfits are provided to the Employee (and/or hisdlependents) by a subsequent employer of the
Employee, who shall certify a description thereofite Bank

(d) No employee shall be requirednitigate, by seeking employment or otherwise,almunt of any payment that the Bank becomes
obligated to make under this Plan, and amounte foaid to an employee pursuant to this Plan slalbe reduced by reason of the emplogeddtaining
other employment or receiving similar payments emdfits from another employer.

5. WITHHOLDING. The Bank shall\reathe right to deduct from all payments under Bian any taxes required by law to be withheld from
such payments.

6. NO RIGHT TO EMPLOYMENT. Notlgrin this Plan shall be construed as giving ang@ethe right to be retained in the employment of
the Bank or the Holding Company, nor shall it affféa@ right of the Bank or the Holding Companyeatinate an employee’s employment with or
without Cause.

7. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION. Th8oard of Directors of the Bank may amend or teaterthis Plan at any time prior to a
Change of Control. This Plan may not be amendedrorinated at any time after a Change of Contraliy manner adverse to an employee without the
consent of such employee.

8. NONASSIGNABILITY. Benefits urdthis Plan may not be assigned by the employlee t8rms and conditions of this Plan shall be
binding on the successors and assigns of the Bank.

9. SEVERABILITY. In the event that any provision ofigiPlan shall be held to be invalid or unenforcedbl any reason, in whole or in p:
the remaining provisions of this Plan shall be tew@éd thereby and shall remain in full force affdat to the fullest extent permitted by law.

10. CONSTRUCTION. The Board of Dirast of the Bank shall have sole and full authawdtynterpret and construe this Plan. Any such
interpretation or construction shall be final amdcusive.




11. GOVERNING LAW. This Plan shall geverned by the laws of the State of New Yorkhwitt reference to conflicts of law principles.

12. GUARANTEE. The Holding Companyllguarantee the payment by the Bank of any ben&fiwhich an employee is entitled under this
Plan.

13. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Plan shadl éffective as of July 28, 2015.

14. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 409A

(@) Notwithstanding the provisiafsSection 4 of this Plan, if the employee is ac#fjied employee within the meaning of Section 40&Ahe

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Sed@8A”), as determined by the Board of Directorshef Bank in accordance with the election made
by the Bank for determining specified employeey, amounts payable under Section 4 of this Plan vbanstitute “deferred compensation” within the
meaning of Section 409A and which are otherwiseduled to be paid during the first six months failog the employee’s termination of employment
(other than any payments that are permitted undetiéh 409A to be paid within six months followiteymination of employment of a specified
employee) shall be suspended until the six-moniiivansary of the employee’s termination of employtn@r the employee’s death if sooner), at which
time all payments that were suspended shall betpdlte employee (or her estate) in a lump surettey with interest on each suspended payment at
the prime rate (as reported in the Wall Streetdal)ifrom the date of suspension to the date ofryzan.

(b) A termination of employment dhradt be deemed to have occurred for purposesypeavision of this Plan providing for the paymeft
any amounts or benefits upon or following a terrtioraof employment unless such termination is al$eeparation from service” (within the meaning
of Code Section 409A).

(c) It is intended that this Plamtply with the provisions of Section 409A and tegulations and guidance of general applicabilisyésl
thereunder so as to not subject the employee tpaimment of additional interest and taxes undeti®@ed09A, and in furtherance of this intent, tRian
shall be interpreted, operated and administerednranner consistent with these intentions.




Exhibit 10.3

EMPLOYEE SEVERANCE COMPENSATION PLAN
OF
FLUSHING BANK

(Amended and restated effective as of July 28, 015

1. PURPOSE. The purpose of tmpByee Severance Compensation Plan (the “Pland) psovide an equitable measure of compensation
for eligible employees of Flushing Bank (the “Bapkt Flushing Financial Corporation (the “Holding@pany”) whose employment has been
terminated within one year after a Change of Cadntro

2. DEFINITIONS.

(a) “Cause” means intentional eragagnt in dishonest conduct, insubordination, wliltfisconduct, breach of fiduciary duty involving
personal profit, intentional failure to perform g, or commission of an act which would constitfelony.

(b) “Change of Control” means:

0] the acquisition of all or stidastially all of the assets of the Bank or the HimdCompany by any person or entity, or by any essor
entities acting in concert;

(ii) the occurrence of any eventriimediately following such event, a majority oétmembers of the Board of Directors of the Banther
Holding Company or of any successor corporatior sbasist of persons other than Current Membessttfese purposes, a “Current Member” shall
mean any member of the Board of Directors of thekBa the Holding Company as of the Effective Daft¢he Conversion and any successor of a
Current Member whose nomination or election has tagproved by a majority of the Current Membersitbie the Board of Directors);

(i) the acquisition of beneficial orship, directly or indirectly (as provided in RUl3d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834 (
“Act”), or any successor rule), of 25% or more lod total combined voting power of all classes otktof the Bank or the Holding Company by any
person or group deemed a person under Section(33¢f)the Act; or

(iv) approval by the stockholderstod Bank or the Holding Company of an agreementigitog for the merger or consolidation of the Bamk o
the Holding Company with another corporation whbeestockholders of the Bank or the Holding Compamynediately prior to the merger or
consolidation, would not beneficially own, directy indirectly, immediately after the merger or solidation, shares entitling such stockholdersG&5
or more of the total combined voting power of disses of stock of the surviving corporation.

(c) “Effective Date of the Convensi means the day on which the conversion of thekBeom the mutual to capital stock form of owneépsh
becomes effective.



(d) “Disability” means terminatiomder circumstances in which the employee wouldifyufdr disability benefits under one or more digip
programs maintained by the Holding Company or thakB

(e) “Good Reason” means (1) a reéidmcby the Bank or the Holding Company in the emgpk’s Pay, as in effect immediately prior to a
Change of Control, or (ii) the failure of the BamkHolding Company to maintain the employee’s gpatplace of employment within 50 miles, as in
effect immediately prior to a Change of Control.

) “Pay” means the regular houslsige of an employee or, if the employee is salatleglannual base salary of the employee, as écteff
immediately prior to a Change of Control, and doesinclude in either case overtime, bonuses, lbergbremium wage payments.

3. ELIGIBILITY. An employee shdik eligible to receive the severance payment itestin Section 4 of this Plan if:

(a) the employee was employed leyBhnk or the Holding Company immediately prioat€hange of Control at the level of Assistant
Secretary or below,

(b) the employee is not a partyriceenployment agreement nor a special terminatioeeagent with the Bank or the Holding Company on the
date of termination of the employee’s employment,

(c) the employee completed at least year of service with the Bank or the Holdirgmpany prior to termination of the employee’s
employment,

(d) the employee’s employment wamtrated within one year following a Change of Gohtand

(e) the employee’s employment veaminated (i) by the Bank or the Holding Compartyeotthan by reason of the death, or Disabilityhef t
employee and other than for Cause, or (ii) by theleyee for Good Reason.

4, BENEFITS.

(a) Employees eligible pursuanztion 3 shall be entitled to receive from thelBarcash lump sum severance payment equal to te&sve

of Pay for each full year of continuous service pteted with the Bank or the Holding Company or angdecessor of the Bank, up to a maximum
benefit of 26 weeks of Pay, which shall be paichimithirty days of the Employee’s termination of@oyment.

(b) The severance payment descritbee in paragraph (a) shall be payable in additipand not in lieu of, all other accrued or vdste
earned but deferred compensation, rights, optiansther benefits which may be owed to the empldg#ewing termination.

(c) No employee shall be requirednitigate, by seeking employment or otherwise, a@im@unt of any payment that the Bank becomes
obligated to make under this Plan, and amount toaid to an employee pursuant to this Plan sloalbe reduced by reason of the emplogeddtaining
other employment or receiving similar payments emédits from another employer.




5. WITHHOLDING. The Bank shall\reathe right to deduct from all payments under Bian any taxes required by law to be withheld from
such payments.

6. NO RIGHT TO EMPLOYMENT. Nothgrin this Plan shall be construed as giving ang@ethe right to be retained in the employment of
the Bank or the Holding Company, nor shall it affféne right of the Bank or the Holding Companyéatinate an employee’s employment with or
without Cause.

7. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION. Th8oard of Directors of the Bank may amend or teaterthis Plan at any time prior to a
Change of Control. This Plan may not be amendedraorinated at any time after a Change of Contraliy manner adverse to an employee without the
consent of such employee.

8. NONASSIGNABILITY. Benefits urdthis Plan may not be assigned by the employlee tdrms and conditions of this Plan shall be
binding on the successors and assigns of the Bank.

9. SEVERABILITY. In the event that any provision ofigiPlan shall be held to be invalid or unenforcedbl any reason, in whole or in p:
the remaining provisions of this Plan shall be teéd thereby and shall remain in full force affdct to the fullest extent permitted by law.

10. CONSTRUCTION. The Board of Dimmst of the Bank shall have sole and full authawtynterpret and construe this Plan. Any such

interpretation or construction shall be final amdcusive.

11. GOVERNING LAW. This Plan shall geverned by the laws of the State of New Yorkhwitt reference to conflicts of law principles.

%”2 GUARANTEE. The Holding Companybllguarantee the payment by the Bank of any ben&fiwhich an employee is entitled under this
an.

13. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Plan shad! éffective as of the Effective Date of the Coniers

14. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 409A

€) Notwithstanding the provisiafsSection 4 of this Plan, if the employee is ac#fjed employee within the meaning of Section 40&Ahe

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Se408A”), as determined by the Board of Directorshef Bank in accordance with the election made
by the Bank for determining specified employeey, amounts payable under Section 4 of this Plan vbanstitute “deferred compensation” within the
meaning of Section 409A and which are otherwiseduled to be paid during the first six months failog the employee’s termination of employment
(other than any payments that are permitted undetich 409A to be paid within six months followiteymination of employment of a specified
employee) shall be suspended until the six-moniiivansary of the employee’s termination of employtn@r the employee’s death if sooner), at which
time all payments that were suspended shall betpdlte employee (or her estate) in a lump surettay with interest on each suspended payment at
the prime rate (as reported in the Wall Streetdal)ifrom the date of suspension to the date ofryzan.




(b) A termination of employment dhradt be deemed to have occurred for purposesypeovision of this Plan providing for the paymeft
any amounts or benefits upon or following a terrtioraof employment unless such termination is al$eeparation from service” (within the meaning
of Code Section 409A).

(c) It is intended that this Plamply with the provisions of Section 409A and tegulations and guidance of general applicabilisyiési
thereunder so as to not subject the employee tpaimment of additional interest and taxes undeti®@ed09A, and in furtherance of this intent, tRian
shall be interpreted, operated and administerednranner consistent with these intentions.




FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John R. Buran, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form@0f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notator@ny untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances unwtiech such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cfi@s of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financiglorging, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rigggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for extel
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proceg] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the teyig's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has adlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over ficéal reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeth® registrant’s board of directors (or persoedgrming the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date:_August 7, 2015 By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran
President and Chief Executive Offic



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David Fry, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form@0f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notator@ny untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances unwtiech such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cfi@s of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financiglorging, or caused such internal control over foiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rigggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for extel
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiaisimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proceg] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the teyig's internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has adlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyal
affect, the registrant’s internal control over ficéal reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committeth® registrant’s board of directors (or persoedgrming the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiafmation; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date:_August 7, 2015 By: /s/David Fry
David Fry

Senior Executive Vice President, Treasurer
and Chief Financial Office



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of FlushFigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Foli®-Q for the period ended June 30, 2015 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorhe date hereof (the “Report”), I, John R. Bui@hief Executive Officer of the Corporation,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, apsatbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxeyf 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaalition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran

Chief Executive Officer
August 7, 2015



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of FlushFigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Foli®-Q for the period ended June 30, 2015 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiornhe date hereof (the “Report”), I, David Fry, €hFinancial Officer of the Corporation,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, apsetbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxeyf 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaalition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

By: /s/David Fry
David Fry
Chief Financial Officer

August 7, 2015



